
 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Regulatory Committee 
Agenda 
 

Date Monday 19 March 2018 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Level 4 Rooms D and E, Civic Centre, West Street, Oldham OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Sian Walter-Browne in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Sian Walter-Browne Tel. 0161 
770 5151 or email sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk 
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Wednesday, 14 
March 2018. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and 
the press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends 
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 

Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 

including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 Councillors Ahmad, Ali, Brock, Dean, Harkness, Hewitt, Rehman, Salamat 

and Williams 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

Public Document Pack

mailto:sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk


 
 

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 10) 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 11th January 2018 
are attached for approval. 

6   Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19 (Pages 11 - 52) 

7   External Audit Plan Year Ending 31 March 2018 (Pages 53 - 70) 

8   Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2017-18 (Pages 71 - 96) 

9   2017/18 Proposed Accounting Policies and Critical Judgements (Pages 97 - 120) 

10   Internal Audit Charter 2018/19 (Pages 121 - 132) 

11   Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan 2018/19 (Pages 133 - 152) 

12   Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraphs 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on balance, be in the 
public interest to disclose the reports. 

13   Internal Control Matters in the Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods Directorate 
(Pages 153 - 188) 

14   Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 and New Issues on Governance 
(Pages 189 - 204) 

 



 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
11/01/2018 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillors Ahmad, Ali, Brock, Dean, Hewitt, Rehman, Salamat 
and Williams 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Anne Ryans Director of Finance, Oldham 

Metropolitan Borough Council, 
OMBC 

 Mark Stenson Head of Corporate Governance, 
OMBC 

 Jane Whyatt Audit and Counter Fraud Manager, 
OMBC 

 Andrew Bloor Assistant Manager Counter Fraud, 
OMBC 

 Sabed Ali Assistant Manager Internal Audit, 
OMBC 

 Lee Walsh Finance Manager Capital and 
Treasury, OMBC 

 Talei Whitmore  Senior Accountant, OMBC 
 Karen Murray Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton 

– External Auditors 
 Helen Stevenson  Engagement Manager, Grant 

Thornton –External Auditors 
 Fabiola Fuschi Constitutional Services Officer, 

OMBC  
 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Harkness.  
 
The Chair welcome Councillor Brock to her first meeting of the 
Audit Committee following approval of the Political Balance 
Review at full Council meeting on 13th December 2017.  

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Audit Committee meeting 
held on 7th September 2017 be approved as a correct record.  

6   INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS IN THE HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING DIRECTORATE  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Corporate 
Governance which summarised the internal control matters 
identified by the Audit and Counter Fraud Team in the Health 
and Wellbeing Directorate since December 2016. Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 
The Audit and Counter Fraud Manager presented the 
information. The Director of Adults was also in attendance to 
address the enquiries of the Committee on the matters raised in 
the report.  
 
The overarching conclusion, based on the opinion of the audit 
reviews conducted in the Directorate during the last year, was 
that there were potential improvements to the control 
environment, including the two main financial systems based in 
the Directorate: Personal Budgets and Residential Homecare 
Payments. 
 
 Actions had been identified and agreed with the Directorate 
Managers to address priorities carried forward from previous 
reviews, as well as some new areas of focus. Furthermore, the 
Directorate had commenced a programme of business change 
which it was believed would have a positive impact on the 
overall control environment for the key financial systems and 
processes. 
 
Members were informed that the agreed 2017/18 interim audit 
assessment for Personal Budgets and Homecare was that 
systems and controls were “Inadequate”. However, some 
progress had been made which was detailed in the Action Plan 
at the end of the report. Furthermore, two new actions had been 
agreed with managers concerning the timeline to raise invoices 
to clients and the streamline of the payment process. The 
transition to the new social care software - Mosaic – had also 
contributed to significant delays in obtaining information relevant 
to the completion of the actions for 2015/16 and 2016/17.  
With regards to Residential Care Payments, the system had 
been rated as “adequate”. However, a new action had been 
agreed on the review of short stay placements.  
 
Internal Audit was also planning to complete a review in 
Children’s Services in the last quarter of the financial year to 
examine the processes of cash control, considering the high risk 
attached to the materiality level of cash turnover.  
 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following points: 

– The Committee acknowledged the robust audit and 
recovery function which derived from the fact that Audit 
was separate from the service area subject to review. 
This offered effective governance and control. It also 
provided accurate scrutiny and a greater awareness of 
the matters that needed to be addressed.  

– Members raised their concerns with regards to Personal 
Budget/Direct Payment systems and processes, its 
effectiveness and opportunity for improvements. 
Members also referred to the 2017/18 Council Tax 
increase /Social Care Precept in relation to resources and 
value for money – In order to explain the current position 
and the outcome of the interim audit review on Personal 
Budgets and Direct Payments, the Director of Adults gave Page 2



 

an overview of the Direct Payment process and the 
legislative requirements that underpinned it. It was 
explained that a critical point was the calculation of the 
Individual Budget at the commencement of the process. 
Other local authorities had adopted a different system, 
from the one in use in Oldham, which was able to 
calculate the local market rate, providing a more accurate 
Direct Payment figure.  

– Delay in carrying out Adult Social Care statutory yearly 
reviews of clients’ needs, effects on Direct Payments and 
process to cover lower and over spending; it was 
observed that the delay should be factored in when the 
Personal Budget was calculated at the start of the 
process - It was agreed that this point would be added to 
the Adult Services’ Action Recovery Plan. Members were 
informed that two additional social workers would be 
employed to address the backlog of reviews. The 
imminent transition to the Integrated Care model would 
assist in addressing the issue consistently.  

– Audit function in other local authorities – It was observed 
that the level of scrutiny in Oldham was very high in 
comparison to other local authorities in Greater 
Manchester. This allowed the recovery of considerable 
resources, once overpayments and inappropriate use of 
financial contributions had been identified. These figures 
were discussed with the relevant portfolio holder on a 
quarterly basis.   

– Effectiveness of the current system to process Direct 
Payments – It was explained that, although Personal 
Budgets represented a fair system to support people with 
their health and social care needs, the financial system 
linked to the process was extremely complex. 
Furthermore, Oldham, compared to other local authorities 
in Greater Manchester, had a very high percentage of 
elderly people who utilised Direct Payments. It was 
reiterated that it was critical to determine Personal 
Budgets with the greatest accuracy at the beginning of 
the process. Oldham Council was exploring the possibility 
to access a more accurate system that was already in 
use in other authorities.   

 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The content of the report be noted.  
2. Measures to address the consequences of the delay in 

carrying out Adult Social Care statutory reviews be 
considered in the Adult Social Services’ Recovery Plan.  

3. The figures on the recovery of overpayments and 
inappropriate use of financial contributions be monitored 
monthly by the Audit and Counter Fraud Team.  

7   THE ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER GRANT THORNTON   

The Committee gave consideration to the Annual Audit Letter for 
Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council which summarised the 
key findings arising from the work that the External Auditors, 
Grant Thornton, had carried out for the year ended on 31st 
March 2017.  Page 3



 

 
The Engagement Lead and the Engagement Manager from 
Grant Thornton were in attendance to present the information 
and address the enquiries of the Committee.  
 
It was reported that the External Auditors had identified a risk 
associated with the Health and Social Care Integration, the 
creation of the Oldham Integrated Care Organisation and the 
wider developments in Greater Manchester through the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership. A review had 
been carried out on how the Council worked with its partners, 
both locally and across Greater Manchester; project 
management and risk assurance frameworks had also been 
reviewed.  
 
Overall, the External Auditors were satisfied that, in all 
significant aspects, the Council had put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources for the year ending on 31st March 2017.  
 
The Head of Corporate Governance drew the attention of the 
Committee on page 13 of the report and explained that it should 
not include the External Auditors’ fees for other Audit related 
services to the wholly owned subsidiary company of the Council: 
Miocare Group Community IC. This was a separate engagement 
outside the remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.  
 
RESOLVED that the content of the External Auditors’ Annual 
Audit Letter be noted.  

8   CERTIFICATION WORK FOR OLDHAM METROPOLITAN 
BOROUGH COUNCIL FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 
GRANT THORNTON  

 

Consideration was given to the External Auditors’ certification of 
the Housing Benefit subsidy claim that had been submitted by 
the Council for the year 2016/17.  
 
The Engagement Lead and the Engagement Manager from 
Grant Thornton were in attendance to present the information 
and address the enquiries of the Committee.  
 
The Committee was informed of an error on this year’s subsidy 
return which had reoccurred from 2015/16. However, the 
financial impact on the claim was relatively insignificant to the 
total subsidy receivable. The Department for Work and Pension 
had been informed.  
 
The External Auditors commented that, overall, considering the 
complexity of the system, a good level of assurance had been 
provided by Oldham Council.  
 
RESOLVED that the External Auditors’ certification of the 
Housing Benefit subsidy claim of the Council for the year 
2016/17 be noted.  

9   AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE  Page 4



 

GRANT THORNTON  

Consideration was given to a report of the External Auditors, 
Grant Thornton, which informed the Committee of the progress 
in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s External 
Auditors for the current financial year. The report also provided a 
summary of emerging national issues and developments that 
might be relevant to the Council.  
 
The Engagement Lead and the Engagement Manager from 
Grant Thornton were in attendance to present the information 
and address the enquiries of the Committee.  
 
The progress at January 2018 was highlighted with regards to 
the Financial Statement Audit, value for money and other areas 
of work such as certification and claims, meetings with relevant 
officers of the Council and provision of training, development 
and opportunities for discussing the latest information on local 
government finance.  
 
More detailed information would be presented at the next 
meeting of the Audit Committee.  
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn on page 33 of the report 
to highlight the fact that, in 2016-17, local authorities had 
financed more of their expenditures from locally retained income 
(i.e.: Reserves) compared to 2015-16.  
 
RESOLVED that the content of the Audit Progress Report and 
Sector update be noted.  

10   PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS - 
OUTCOME OF EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT  

 

The Committee gave consideration to a report of the Head of 
Corporate Governance on the outcome of the external 
assessment of the Council’s Internal Audit function in order to 
comply with the requirements of the 2013 Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards revised in 2017. The Council had 
commissioned the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) to deliver the external assessment. The 
review had been carried out in September 2017.  
 
The Audit and Counter Fraud Manager presented the 
information and addressed the enquiries of the Committee.  
 
The Committee was informed that the CIPFA review had been 
conducted on site on 4th and 5th September 2017 and had 
comprised the following: 

– Review of documentation provided in advance to CIPFA; 
– Review of working papers for three audit reviews;  
– Interviews with members of the Audit and Counter Fraud 

Team; 
– Meeting with key stakeholders. 

 
The review concluded that the service “Generally conforms” to 
the standards. In addition, the review reported that Internal Audit Page 5



 

was a “Well respected service, which follows best practice”. 
Overall, it was established that there were no areas of non-
compliance and that the self-assessment was a good reflexion 
of internal Audit’s practices.  
 
The CIPFA report contained four recommendations which had 
been fully agreed by the Head of Corporate Governance. The 
changes related to the Audit Charter and the Annual Report and 
they would be fully implemented at the next revision of the 
documents and incorporated into the 2018/19 Audit and Counter 
Fraud Plan.  The review also identified some suggestions for the 
service to consider. The suggestions had been agreed by the 
Head of Corporate Governance and they would also be 
implemented in 2018/19.  
 
The Chair of the Committee commended the work of the Audit 
and Counter Fraud Team as this gave a reasonable degree of 
independent assurance that the team operated in compliance 
with the code of practice.  
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The outcome of the external assessment on Internal 
Audit be noted; 

2. The implementation of agreed service suggestions be 
endorsed.  

  

11   AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS REPORT   

Consideration was given to a progress report of the Head of 
Corporate Governance on the performance by the Audit and 
Counter Fraud Team for the first seven months of the financial 
year 2017/18. 
 
The Assistant Manager Counter Fraud and the Assistant 
Manager Internal Audit were in attendance to present the 
information and address the enquiries of the Committee.  
 
The report looked at the progress on the 2017/18 Audit and 
Counter Fraud Plan; it also reviewed the position on the 
Corporate Counter Fraud and the Audit of Personal Budgets.  
 
It was reported that the team was on track to deliver results for 
most of the agreed performance indicators, in line with its annual 
targets. The key performance highlights included: 

– 19 Final Audit Reports issued since 1st April (annual 
target of 85); 

– Customer feedback average score received is 4.8 
(maximum score 5); 

– Time taken to issue reports continued to be efficient with 
an average time of around 18 days, against a target of 
20; 

– 45 positive cases of Council Tax Reduction Fraud and 
Error identified; 

– £38,000 of Council Tax Reduction misuse and savings 
had been uncovered; 

Page 6



 

– 6 Administration Penalties and 39 Warning letters had 
been issued to Council Tax customers reminding them of 
their duties to report changes in their circumstances; 

– £82,000 of Housing Benefits Fraud and Error 
overpayments identified during Council Tax Reduction 
investigations; 

– 130 allegations of Welfare Fraud reported to the 
Department of Work and Pensions; 

– 38 positive cases of non Council Tax Reduction 
fraud/misuse; and 

–  The Direct Payments Audit Team carried out 623 audits 
of Adults and Children’s Direct Payments, against a 
target of 630 and identified approximately £961,000 to be 
recovered in overpayments, inappropriate use and 
financial contributions. 

 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following point: 

– Fraud and methods to detect intentional behaviour – it 
was explained that during the assessment stage and 
through background research, it was possible to detect 
intentional behaviour.  

 
RESOLVED that the 2017/18 Audit and Counter Fraud progress 
report up to 31st October 2017 by the Head of Corporate 
Governance be noted.  

12   APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDIT FROM THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2018/19  

 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance 
which informed of the appointment of Mazars as the external 
auditors to the Council from the 2018/19 and proposed report to 
full Council in March 2018 on the matter.  
 
The handover process would take place between the current 
and the newly appointed External Auditors. A meeting between 
the Director of Finance and the new Auditors would take place 
next week to discuss the transition as well as some operational 
details.  
 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following point: 

– Newly appointed External Auditors and risk management 
– It was explained that standards and quality assurance 
processes were in place to safeguard the Council against 
the possibility of underperforming external audit function. 

 
RESOLVED that the report to full Council on the appointment of 
the external auditor to the Council and development on External 
Audit be noted.   

13   TREASURY MANAGEMENT HALF YEAR REVIEW 2017/18   

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
on the performance of the Treasury Management function of the 
Council for the first half of 2017/18. The report provided a 
comparison of performance against the 2017/18 Treasury Page 7



 

Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators. Due to the 
timing of the Committee, the report had already been approved 
by Cabinet on 20th November 2017 and Council on 13th 
December 2017.  
 
The Director of Finance presented the information and 
responded to the enquiries of the Committee.  
 
It was explained that the Council was required to comply with 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
Treasury Management Revised Code of Practice. The report set 
out the key Treasury Management issues for Members’ 
information and review and outlined: 

– An economic update for the first six months of 2017/18; 
– A review of the Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement and Annual Investment Strategy; 
– The Council capital expenditure (prudential indicators); 
– A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2017/18; 
– A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2017/18; 
– Why there had been no debt rescheduling undertaken 

during 2017/18; 
– A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential 

Limits for 2017/18. 
 
The Committee was reassured that the Council had established 
good practice in relation to Treasury Management which had 
previously been acknowledged by Internal Audit as well as in the 
External Auditors’ report presented to the Audit Committee. The 
Treasury Management activities followed the pattern of the 
established experience and good practice further evidenced with 
a rating of “good” in the recently issued Fundamental Financial 
Systems audit undertaken by Internal Audit on the Treasury 
Management function.  

 
Members sought and received clarification/commented on the 
following point: 

– Notice to be served to withdraw Council’s investments – It 
was explained that a detailed procedure was in place.  
 

RESOLVED that the Treasury Management Half Year Review 
2017/18 be noted.  

14   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 
balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 

15   PRESENTATION ON PROPOSED FUTURE TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  

 

A presentation on the key changes concerning the revised 
Prudential Code and the Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management was given by the Finance Manager Capital and 
Treasury and the Senior Accountant. The two codes had been Page 8



 

reviewed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accounting in December 2017. 
 
It was explained that the new codes had been issued in January 
2018. However, the guidance, outlining the practical 
interpretation of the key principles, had not yet been published. 
The preparation of the Treasury Management Strategy for 
2018/19 and its presentation to Cabinet and Council was linked 
to the publication of the guidance to ensure the conformity of the 
strategy to the revised codes.  
 
Members sought and received clarification / commented on the 
following points: 

– Capital investment and governance structure; 
– Function of the Audit Committee and links with Cabinet. 

 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The content of the presentation be noted.  
2. The Chair of the Audit Committee, in conjunction with the 

Head of Governance, liaise with Cabinet over the 
outcomes of the Audit function.  

 

16   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR 2016/17 AND 
NEW ISSUES ON GOVERNANCE  

 

The Committee gave consideration to a report of the Head of 
Corporate Governance on the progress made to reduce the risk 
linked to areas requiring improvement in internal control within 
the Annual Governance Statement 2016/17. The report also 
identified new risks which, at this stage, were considered 
appropriate for potential inclusion in the Annual Governance 
Statement for the financial year 2017/18.  
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The progress made by the Council on issues reported in 
the 2016/17 Annual Governance Statement be noted; 

2. The emerging issues during 2017/18 to be considered for 
inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement be noted; 

3. The assessment of risk as advised in the verbal update 
on the current Risk Monitor be noted.  

 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.28 pm 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
The report sets out the 2018/19 Treasury Management strategy (including Minimum 
Revenue Provision policy statement, annual investment strategy and prudential 
indicators). It is presented to enable members of the Audit Committee to consider and 
comment upon the report. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Council is required through regulations supporting the Local Government Act 2003 to 
‘have regard to’ the Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three 
years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable.  It is also required to produce an annual Treasury Strategy for borrowing and 
to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy setting out the Councils policies for managing 
its investments and for giving priority to security and liquidity of those investments. 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management 2011 (the Code) also requires the receipt by full Council of a 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement. 
 

Report to Audit Committee 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
2018/19 
Including Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and Prudential 
Indicators  
 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Abdul Jabbar MBE, Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for Finance and HR 
 
Officer Contact:  Anne Ryans, Director of Finance 
 
Report Author: Lee Walsh, Finance Manager  
Ext. 6608 
 
1 March 2017 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 

The attached report meets the current statutory requirements and complies with both the 
Code and the CIPFA Prudential Code of Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
Prudential Code). 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 is based on the current guidance at the 
time of writing. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
released revised and updated versions of the Prudential Code and the Treasury 
Management Code in early January 2018. It has not yet released guidance notes to these 
two Codes which would provide clarity in interpreting the new requirements. This is 
important as these Codes heavily influence the context of the Treasury Management 
Strategy.  
 
In February 2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
released the consultation and Government responses to the proposed changes to the 
prudential framework for capital finance, in particular Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
and investment guidance. Further information will be provided in the non- statutory 
explanatory notes, (not yet released) to clarify the MRP Guidance. This report has 
therefore been based on the current guidance / information available.  
 
The report at Appendix 1 is presented to the Audit Committee to enable it to have the 
opportunity to review the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy. Members will recall that 
the key elements of the 2018/19 strategy were presented to the committee on the 11 
January 2018 prior to this Scrutiny of the Audit Committee.  It should be noted that the 
report has already been approved by Cabinet on 19 February 2018 and will be 
commended by Council on 28 February 2018. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
That Members of the Audit Committee consider and comment upon the Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2018/19 that was commended to Council on 28 February 2018 
by the Cabinet at its meeting on the 19 February 2018. 

 
 

Page 12



 

 

Appendix One 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
To present to Council, the strategy for 2018/19 Treasury Management activities including 
the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement, the Annual Investment Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators.  
  
Executive Summary 
 
The report outlines the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 including the Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and Prudential 
Indicators. 
 
The Strategy for 2018/19 covers two main areas. 
 
 
 
Capital Issues 

Report to Council 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
2018/19 
 

Including the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and Prudential 
Indicators  
 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Abdul Jabbar MBE, Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for Finance and HR 
 
Officer Contact: Anne Ryans, Director of Finance 
 
Report Author: Lee Walsh, Finance Manager 
 
Ext. 6608 
 
28 February 2018 

Page 13



 

 

 

 The Capital Plans and the Prudential Indicators 

 The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 
 
Treasury Management Issues: 
 

 The Current Treasury Position 

 Treasury Indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 

 Prospects for Interest Rates 

 The Borrowing Strategy 

 The Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 The Investment Strategy 

 The Creditworthiness Policy 

 The Policy regarding the use of external service providers. 
 

The report therefore outlines the implications and key factors in relation to each of the 
above Capital and Treasury Management issues and makes recommendations with regard 
to the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19. 
 

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 is based on the current guidance at the 
time of writing. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
released revised and updated versions of the Prudential Code and the Treasury 
Management Code in early January 2018. It has not yet released guidance notes to these 
two Codes which would provide clarity in interpreting the new requirements. This is 
important as these Codes heavily influence the context of the Treasury Management 
Strategy.  
 

In February 2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
released the consultation and Government responses to the proposed changes to the 
prudential framework for capital finance, in particular MRP and investment guidance. 
Further information will be provided in the non- statutory explanatory notes, (not yet 
released) to clarify the MRP Guidance. This report has therefore been based on the 
current guidance / information available. It may be necessary to revise the Treasury 
Management Strategy at a later date when further clarification on new requirements 
becomes available. 
 

The proposed Treasury Management Strategy was presented for scrutiny to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money Select Committee on 25 January 2018. 
The Committee was content to commend the report to Cabinet. It should be noted that the 
report has been subsequently updated to reflect revised Capital Expenditure projections 
and associated Prudential Indicators. Cabinet duly considered and approved the report at 
its meeting on 19 February 2018 and commended the report to Council. 
 

Recommendation 
 

That Council approves the: 
 

1 Capital Expenditure Estimates as per paragraph 2.1.2; 
2 MRP policy and method of calculation as per Appendix 1; 
3 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Projections as per paragraph 2.2.4; 
4 Projected treasury position as at 31/03/2018 as per paragraph 2.3.3; 
5 Treasury Limit’s as per section 2.4; 
6 Borrowing Strategy for 2018/19 as per section 2.6; 

Page 14



 

 

7 Annual Investment Strategy as per section 2.10 including non-treasury 
investments and the creditworthiness policy at section 2.11. 

8 Level of investment in specified, non-specified and non-treasury investments 
detailed at Appendix 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council 28 February 2018 
 

Page 15



 

 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19 Including the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and Prudential Indicators  
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 

raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the Treasury Management 
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available 
when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low investment risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity 
initially before considering investment return. 

 
1.2 The second main function of the Treasury Management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can 
meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion 
any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.3 Treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks. ” 
 

Source: CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Service’s Code of Practice. 
   

Reporting Requirements 
 
1.4 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each 

year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. 
  

a) Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report). 
  

The first and most important report covers:  
 

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is    
charged to revenue over time); 

 the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be 
organised) including treasury indicators; and  

 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed). 
 

b)  A mid-year treasury management report,  
 

This report updates Members with the progress of the capital position, amending 
Prudential Indicators as necessary and revising any policies as required; 

 
c)  An annual treasury report 

 
This report will provide details of a selection of actual Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 

1.5 The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being recommended 
to the Council. The PVFM Select Committee scrutinises the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement report together with all the other reports which are presented to the 
annual Budget Council meeting. The Audit Committee, the body charged with the detailed 

Page 16



 

 

scrutiny of Treasury Management activities will also consider this report and the mid-year 
and annual review report.  

 
1.6 Capital Strategy 
 
1.6.1 In December 2017, CIPFA issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. 

As from 2019/20, all Local Authorities will be required to prepare an additional report, a 
Capital Strategy report (currently this is not a specific requirement), which is intended to 
provide the following:- 

 

 a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services 

 an overview of how the associated risk is managed 

 the implications for future financial sustainability 
 
1.6.2 The aim of the Capital Strategy will be to ensure that all Members of the Council fully 

understand the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk appetite entailed by this 
Strategy. It will include capital expenditure, investments and liabilities and treasury 
management in sufficient detail to allow all Members to understand how stewardship, 
value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability will be secured. 

 
1.6.3 The Council’s current Capital Strategy meets many of the elements of the proposed 

guidance, however, some work will be needed to adapt the Strategy to ensure full 
compliance. This work will be undertaken so that the Capital Strategy for 2019/20 
complies with the new guidance which becomes effective from April 2019.  

 
1.7 Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 
  
1.7.1 The Strategy for 2018/19 covers two main areas, Capital issues and Treasury 

Management issues set out below: 
 
1.7.2  Capital Issues: 
 

 The Capital Plans and the Prudential Indicators 

 The MRP Policy Statement 
 
1.7.3 Treasury Management Issues: 
 

 The current Treasury Position 

 Treasury Indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 

 Prospects for Interest Rates 

 The Borrowing Strategy 

 The Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 The Investment Strategy 

 The Creditworthiness Policy 

 The Policy regarding the use of external service providers. 
 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 
Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and 
DCLG Investment Guidance.  

 
Training 

 
1.8 The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that Members with 

responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 

Page 17



 

 

management. This especially applies to Members responsible for scrutiny. Training has 
been organised for Members of the Audit Committee during 2017/18 and Treasury 
Management issues are discussed in depth at each Audit Committee meeting. The key 
elements of the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy were discussed at the Audit 
Committee meeting of 11 January 2018. 

 
1.9 Further training will be organised for all Council Members covering general treasury 

matters during 2018 with more detailed training for Members of the Audit Committee. 
 
1.10  The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed. However 

the Treasury team regularly attends training organised by CIPFA and Treasury 
Management advisors.  

 
Treasury Management Consultants 

 
1.11  Oldham Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as its external Treasury 

Management advisors. The Council recognises that responsibility for Treasury 
Management decisions remain with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue 
reliance is not placed upon external service providers.  

 
1.12 It is also recognised that there is value in employing external providers of Treasury 

Management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The 
Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their 
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular 
review.  

 
2 Capital Plans & Prudential Indicators 2018/19 – 2020/21 
 
2.1 Capital Plans 
 
2.1.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of Treasury Management 

activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in Prudential Indicators, 
which are designed to assist Members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 
These indicators as per the Capital Programme include previous years’ actual 
expenditure, forecast expenditure for this current year and estimates for the next three 
year period. 

 
Capital Expenditure Estimates 

 
2.1.2 This first Prudential Indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both 

those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. Council is asked to 
approve the capital expenditure forecasts included the table below: 

 
  

Page 18



 

 

Table 1 - Capital Expenditure Estimates 

Capital Expenditure 
2016/17 
Actual 
£000 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£000 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£000 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£000 

2020/21 
Estimate 

£000 

Corporate and Commercial 
Services 

1,947 5,594 25,445 6,309 838 

Health and Wellbeing 2,056 1,362 4,426 500 500 

Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

 
37,622 

27,882 52,152 97,097 22,717 

Funds yet to be allocated 0 0 4,862 1,775 5,000 

General Fund Services 41,625 34,838 86,885 105,681 29,055 

Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA)  

1,248 1,044 2,773 - 8,550 

HRA 1,248 1,044 2,773 - 8,550 

Total 42,873 35,882 89,658 105,681 37,605 

 
2.1.3 The capital expenditure shown above excludes other long term liabilities, such as PFI and 

leasing arrangements which already include borrowing instruments. It should be noted 
that new expenditure commitments are likely to increase the borrowing requirement. 

 
2.1.4  Table 2 below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 

being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a 
funding need (borrowing). 

 
2.1.5 The borrowing need for capital expenditure in 2018/19 is currently expected to be 

£40.664m. This will however change if there is a revision to the spending profile of the 
capital programme. 

 
 Table 2 - Funding of the Capital Programme 

Capital Expenditure 
2016/17 
Actual 
£000 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£000 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£000 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£000 

2020/21 
Estimate 

£000 

General Fund Services 41,625 34,838 86,885 105,681 29,055 

HRA 1,248 1,044 2,773 - 8,550 

Total 42,873 35,882 89,658 105,681 37,605 

Financed by: 
    

  

Capital receipts (8,780) (6,037) (17,347) (4,258) (1,469) 

Capital grants (17,304) (13,859) (28,718) (45,816) (15,591) 

Revenue (15,541) (176) (786) (3,241) - 

HRA Resources (1,248) (794) (2,143) - (7,300) 

Net financing need for the 
year 

- 15,016 40,664 52,366 13,245 

 
2.1.6  All other prudential indicators included within this report are based on the above capital 

estimates.  
 
2.2 The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
2.2.1 The second Prudential Indicator is the Council’s CFR. The CFR represents total historic 

outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been financed from either revenue or 
capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. 

Page 19



 

 

Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been financed from cash 
backed resources, will increase the CFR. 

 
2.2.2 The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the Council makes ‘prudent’ provision for debt 

repayment which broadly reduces indebtedness in line with each asset’s life and so 
charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used. The approach to 
making prudent provision is set out in the MRP Policy Statement at Appendix 1. 

 
2.2.3 The MRP policy for 2018/19 is largely comparable to 2017/18. The only change is an 

amendment at 1.4.2 in Appendix 1 to clarify that the Council can adjust current and future 
year’s calculations to recognise and take account of voluntary revenue provision in 
previous years. The Council recognises it has overprovided and therefore will reduce the 
expected MRP by this over provision of £7.465m in 2018/19. This is reflected in the 
2018/19 reveune budget.  

 
2.2.4 The CFR includes other long term liabilities (e.g. Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes, 

finance leases etc.). Whilst these arrangements increase the CFR, and therefore the 
Council’s borrowing requirement, such schemes also include a ‘loan’ facility meaning the 
Council is not required to make separate borrowing arrangements. The Council currently 
has £255.971m of such schemes within the CFR for 2018/19, decreasing to £245.992m in 
2019/20. 

 
Table 3 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

  
2016/17 
Actual 
£000 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£000 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£000 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£000 

2020/21 
Estimate 

£000 

Capital Financing Requirement 
   

  

CFR  521,790 520,936 542,041 572,362 561,381 

Total CFR 521,790 520,936 542,041 572,362 561,381 

Movement in CFR (21,442) (854) 21,105 30,321 (10,981) 

  
    

  

Movement in CFR represented by 
   

  

Net financing need for the year  - 15,016 40,664 52,366 13,245 

PFI Additions/Finance Leases 296 
   

  

Less MRP/VRP and other 
financing movements 

(21,738) (15,870) (19,559) (22,045) (24,226) 

Movement in CFR (21,442) (854) 21,105 30,321 (10,981) 

 
2.3 Borrowing 
 
2.3.1 The capital expenditure plans set out in section 2.1 to a large extent drive the borrowing 

estimates included in this report. The Treasury Management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that 
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy. 
This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, 
the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the relevant 
Treasury and Prudential Indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
Annual Investment Strategy. 

 
  

Page 20



 

 

Current Borrowing Portfolio Position 
 
2.3.2 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2017, with forward projections is 

summarised below. Table 4 shows the actual external debt (the Treasury Management 
operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need, the CFR, highlighting any over 
or under borrowing. 

 
2.3.3  Table 4 shows the forecast position of gross borrowing as at 31 March 2018 at 

£403.821m and an under borrowed position of £117.115m. Council is asked to note the 
expected year end position. 

 
Table 4 Current and Forecast Treasury Portfolio 

  
2016/17 
Actual 

Forecast 
position 

as at 
31/3/18 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

External Debt           

Debt @ 1st April 148,113 147,866 147,850 180,350 215,850 

Expected change in debt (247) (16) 32,500 35,500 0 

Other long-term liabilities 273,009 263,947 255,971 245,992 235,245 

Expected change in OLTL* (9,062) (7,976) (9,979) (10,747) (11,270) 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March 

411,813 403,821 426,342 451,095 439,825 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

521,790 520,936 542,041 572,362 561,381 

Under / (over) borrowing 109,977 117,115 115,699 121,267 121,556 

* (OLTL) - Other Long Term Liabilities  

2.3.4 Table 4 above shows the Council will need to undertake significant additional borrowing in 
future years if capital programme expenditure matches the anticipated spending profile. 
The borrowing requirement is a key driver of the borrowing strategy as set out in section 
2.6 below. However, the Council has yet to draw down additional borrowing and the timing 
of the borrowing is being closely monitored. Members will recall that capital spending 
plans have been reprofiled year on year and it is possible that the trend could be repeated 
in 2018/19. 

 
2.3.5 There are a number of key Prudential Indicators to ensure that the Council operates its 

activities within well-defined limits. The Council must ensure that gross debt does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 
estimates of any additional CFR for 2018/19 and the following two financial years. This 
allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that 
borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. It is clear from the table 
above that the Council’s gross borrowing position remains within these limits. 

 
2.3.6 The Council has complied with this Prudential Indicator in the current year and does not 

envisage any difficulties with compliance in the future. This view takes into account 
current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals set out in this report. 

 
2.4 Treasury Limits for 2018/19 to 2020/21  
 
2.4.1 The Council is required to determine its operational boundary and authorised limit for 

external debt for the next three financial years. 
Operational boundary 

 

Page 21



 

 

2.4.2 The forecast operational boundary for 2017/18 together with the proposed operational 
boundaries for 2018/19 to 2020/21 are set out in Table 5 below. The boundary reflects the 
maximum anticipated level of external debt which is not expected to be exceeded. In most 
cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on 
levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources. This 
boundary will be used as a management tool for ongoing monitoring of external debt, and 
may be breached temporarily due to unusual cash flow movements. However a sustained 
or regular trend above the operational boundary should trigger a review of both the 
operational boundary and the authorised limit.  

 

Table 5 Operational Boundary 

Operational boundary  
2017/18 
Forecast 

£000 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£000 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£000 

2020/21 
Estimate 

£000 

Borrowing 275,000 300,000 340,000 340,000 

Other long term liabilities 255,000 245,000 235,000 225,000 

Total 530,000 545,000 575,000 565,000 

 
Authorised limit 

 
2.4.3  A further key Prudential Indicator, the Authorised Limit controls the maximum level of 

borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit 
may only be determined by the full Council. It reflects the level of external debt which, 
while not desirable, is affordable in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer 
term. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government 
Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all Councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific Council, although this power has not yet been exercised. 

 
2.4.4 Council is asked to approve the following proposed authorised limit for each financial year 

from 2017/18 to 2020/21 as set out in table 5 above and 6 below: 
 
 

Table 6 Authorised Limit  

Authorised Limit  
2017/18 
Forecast 

£000 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£000 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£000 

2020/21 
Estimate 

£000 

Borrowing 285,000 320,000 360,000 360,000 

Other long term liabilities 260,000 250,000 240,000 230,000 

Total 545,000 570,000 600,000 590,000 

 
  

Page 22



 

 

2.4.5 The graphs below disclose how the two indicators above, the Operational Boundary and 
the Authorised Limit compare to actual external debt and the CFR. 

 
 

 

 

  

 411,813  
 403,821  

 426,342  

 451,095  
 439,824  

 565,000  
 545,000  

 570,000  

 600,000  

 590,000  

 550,000  

 530,000  

 545,000  

 575,000  

 565,000  

 521,790   520,936  

 542,041  

 572,362  
 561,381  

 325,000  

 375,000  

 425,000  

 475,000  

 525,000  

 575,000  

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

External Debt 

Authorised Limit 

Operational Boundary 

Capital Financing Requirement 

Page 23



 

 

2.5 Prospects for Interest Rate 
 
2.5.1 The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its Treasury Adviser and part of its 

service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The table below gives 
Link Asset Services central view. 

 

Table 7 Interest Rate Forecast 

 
Bank PWLB Borrowing Rates % 

 
Rate % 5 year 10 year 25 year 50 year 

Mar-18 0.50 1.90 2.50 2.80 2.60 

Jun-18 0.75 2.00 2.50 2.90 2.70 

Sep-18 0.75 2.10 2.60 3.00 2.80 

Dec-18 1.00 2.10 2.70 3.10 2.90 

Mar-19 1.00 2.20 2.70 3.20 3.00 

Jun-19 1.00 2.30 2.80 3.20 3.00 

Sep-19 1.00 2.30 2.80 3.30 3.10 

Dec-19 1.25 2.40 2.90 3.30 3.10 

Mar-20 1.25 2.40 3.00 3.40 3.20 

Jun-20 1.25 2.50 3.00 3.50 3.30 

Sep-20 1.50 2.50 3.10 3.50 3.30 

Dec-20 1.50 2.60 3.10 3.60 3.40 

Mar-21 1.50 2.60 3.20 3.60 3.40 

 

2.5.2 As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) delivered a 0.25% increase in Bank 
Rate at its meeting on 2 November 2017. This removed the emergency cut in August 
2016 after the European Union (EU) referendum. The MPC also gave forward guidance 
that they expected to increase Bank rate only twice more by 0.25% by 2020 to end at 
1.00%. The Link Asset Services forecast as above, however includes increases in Bank 
Rate of 0.25% in November 2018, November 2019 and August 2020. 

 
2.5.3 The overall longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, albeit gently. It has 

long been expected, that at some point, there would be a more protracted move from 
bonds to equities after a historic long-term trend, over about the last 25 years, of falling 
bond yields. 

 
2.5.4 The action of central banks since the financial crash of 2008, in implementing substantial 

Quantitative Easing, added further impetus to this downward trend in bond yields and 
rising bond prices. Quantitative Easing has also directly led to a rise in equity values as 
investors searched for higher returns and took on riskier assets. 

 
2.5.5 The sharp rise in bond yields since the US Presidential election in November 2016 has 

called into question whether the previous trend may go into reverse, especially now the 
Federal Reserve (Fed.) has taken the lead in reversing monetary policy by starting, in 
October 2017, a policy of not fully reinvesting proceeds from bonds that it holds when they 
mature. 

 
2.5.6 Until 2015, monetary policy was focused on providing stimulus to economic growth but 

has since started to refocus on countering the threat of rising inflationary pressures as 
stronger economic growth becomes more firmly established. The Fed. has started raising 
interest rates and this trend is expected to continue during 2018 and 2019. 

 

Page 24



 

 

2.5.7 These increases will make holding US bonds much less attractive and cause their prices 
to fall, and therefore bond yields to rise. Rising bond yields in the US are likely to exert 
some upward pressure on bond yields in the UK and other developed economies. 
However, the degree of that upward pressure is likely to be dampened by how strong or 
weak the prospects for economic growth and rising inflation are in each country, and on 
the degree of progress towards the reversal of monetary policy away from quantitative 
easing and other credit stimulus measures. 

 
2.5.8 From time to time, gilt yields – and therefore Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) rates - can 

be subject to exceptional levels of volatility due to geo-political issues/ events, sovereign 
debt crisis and emerging market developments. Such volatility could occur at any time 
during the forecast period. 

 
2.5.9 Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 

weighing on the UK. The above forecasts (and MPC decisions) will be liable to further 
amendment depending on how economic data and developments in financial markets 
transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially in the EU, could also 
have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment earnings beyond the three-year 
time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and political developments.  

 
2.5.10 The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is probably to the downside, 

particularly with the current level of uncertainty over the final terms of Brexit.  
 
2.5.11 Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include:  
 

 The Bank of England takes action too quickly over the next three years to raise the 
Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker 
than currently anticipated.  

 Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle East, 
which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.  

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, possibly in Italy, due to its high 
level of government debt, low rate of economic growth and vulnerable banking system. 

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks. 

 Germany has just agreed a coalition Government after the inconclusive result of the 
general election in October. Italy is to hold a general election on 4 March and Hungary 
will hold a general election in April 2018. The potential changes to the political 
landscape could impact on overal EU leadership and direction as well as that of the 
individual countries. 

 Rising protectionism under President Trump. 

 A sharp Chinese downturn and its impact on emerging market countries. 
 
2.5.12 The potential for upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, 

especially for longer term PWLB rates include: - 
 

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate 
and, therefore, allows inflation pressures to build up too strongly within the UK 
economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster 
than we currently expect.  

 UK inflation returning to sustained significantly higher levels causing an increase in the 
inflation premium inherent to gilt yields.  

 The Fed causing a sudden shock in financial markets through misjudging the pace and 
strength of increases in its Fed. Funds Rate and in the pace and strength of reversal of 
Quantitative Easing, which then leads to a fundamental reassessment by investors of 
the relative risks of holding bonds, as opposed to equities. This could lead to a major 
flight from bonds to equities and a sharp increase in bond yields in the US, which could 
then spill over into impacting bond yields around the world. 

Page 25



 

 

 
2.5.13 The key issues with regard to investment and borrowing rates are: 
 

 Investment returns are likely to remain low during 2018/19 but to be on a gently rising 
trend over the next few years. 

 Borrowing interest rates increased sharply after the result of the general election in 
June 2017 and then also after the September 2017 MPC meeting when financial 
markets reacted by accelerating their expectations for the timing of Bank Rate 
increases. Apart from that, there has been little general trend in rates during the current 
financial year. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash 
balances has served well over the last few years. However, this needs to be carefully 
reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future if new borrowing to 
finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing debt is required; 

 There will remain a cost of carry to any new long-term borrowing that causes a 
temporary increase in cash balances as this position will, most likely, incur a revenue 
cost – the difference between borrowing costs and investment returns. This is an 
important issue for the Council. There will be a need to borrow, but the timing remains 
uncertain requiring judgement in balancing the cost of carrying unused borrowing 
against locking in potentially to lower long term interest rates. 

 
2.5.14 In the Autumn Budget 2017 the Government confirmed that it will lend Local Authorities in 

England up to £1 billion at a new discounted interest rate of gilts + 60 basis points 
accessible for three years to support infrastructure projects that are high value for money. 
Once the bidding process is confirmed the Council will pursue this opportunity as 
appropriate. 

 
2.6 Borrowing strategy 
 
2.6.1 The factors that influence the 2018/19 strategy are: 
 

 The movement in CFR as set out in Table 3 above; 

 Forthcoming ‘Option’ dates on £55.5m of Lender Option Borrower Option loans 
(LOBO’s) in 2018/19; 

 The interest rate forecasts (set out in Table 7 above); 

 Aiming to minimise revenue costs to reduce the impact on the Council Tax 
Requirement; 

 The impact of the Council’s Capital and Property Investment Programmes. 
 

2.6.2 The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means that the 
CFR has not been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, 
balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be 
considered. However, as interest rates are low, as advised in 2.5.13 consideration will be 
given to taking advantage of this by securing fixed rate funding and reducing the under 
borrowed position.  

 
2.6.3 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 

adopted with the 2018/19 treasury operations. The Treasury Management team will 
monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing 
circumstances so that: 

 

 if it was considered that there was a significant risk of a sharp fall in long and short 
term rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of 
risks of deflation), then long term borrowing will be postponed, and potential 
rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing will be considered. 

Page 26

https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/autumn-budget-2017


 

 

 if it was considered that there was a significant risk of a much sharper rise in long and 
short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the 
start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in 
world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio 
position will be re-appraised with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn 
whilst interest rates are still lower than they will be in the next few years. 

 
2.6.4  The gross borrowing requirement in Table 4 at 2.3.3 above shows, based on current 

estimates, that the Council will need to drawdown a significant amount of new borrowing, 
to support the capital programme. Any additional borrowing will be completed with regard 
to the limits, indicators and interest rate forecasts set out above. As noted previously, 
estimates of borrowing have changed due to the reprofiling of the capital programme. 

 
2.6.5 During 2018/19, £55.5m of LOBO (Lender Option Borrower Option) debt will reach the 

option renewal date. Table 8 below, sets out the maturity structure of fixed rate debt. At 
the renewal date the loans will either: 

 

 Move to the option rate of interest, which in all cases will be the same as the current 
rate or: 

 Be offered at a rate above the option rate, in which case the Council has the option to 
repay. This would then require refinancing at the prevailing market rates. 
 

Table 8 Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Debt 

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate debt 2018/19 

Under 12 months  37.72% 

12 months and within 24 months 3.38% 

24 months and within 5 years 21.54% 

5 years and within 10 years 5.07% 

10 years to 20 years 5.24% 

20 years to 30 years 0.00% 

30 years to 40 years 3.38% 

40 years to 50 years 10.15% 

50 years to 60 years 13.52% 

 
2.6.6 Due to the current interest rate forecast it is not anticipated that any of these LOBO loans 

will be called. 
 
2.6.7 The 2018/19 capital programme now shows anticipated prudential borrowing of 

£106.275m with £40.664m in 2018/19, £52.366m in 2019/20 and £13.245m in 2020/21. 
These figures have been reflected in this report and factored into the borrowing strategy 
for 2018/19 and future years. 

 
2.6.8 Members are advised that indicators for interest rate exposure are no longer a 

requirement under the new Treasury Management Code however as interest rate 
exposure risk is an important issue. Officers will monitor the balance between fixed and 
variable interest rates for borrowing and investments. This will aim to ensure the Council 
is not exposed to adverse fluctuations in fixed or variable rate interest rate movements. 

 
2.6.9 This is likely to reflect higher fixed interest rate borrowing if the borrowing need is high or 

fixed interest rates are likely to increase, or a higher variable rate exposure if fixed interest 
rates are expected to fall. Conversely if shorter term interest rates are likely to fall, 

Page 27



 

 

investments may be fixed earlier, or kept shorter if short term investments are expected to 
rise. 

 
2.6.10 The balance between variable rate debt and variable rate investments will be monitored 

as part of the overall treasury function in the context of the overall financial instruments 
structure and any under or over borrowing positions. 

 
2.7 Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need  
 
2.7.1 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit 

from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will 
be within forward approved CFR estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that 
value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of 
such funds.  

 
2.7.2 Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraint that the Council would not look to 

borrow more than 24 months in advance of need. 
 
2.7.3 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance of activity will be subject to prior appraisal 

and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism. 
 
2.8 Debt Rescheduling 
 
2.8.1 As short term borrowing rates are considerably lower than longer term fixed interest rates, 

there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching from long term debt 
to short term debt. However, these savings will need to be considered in the light of the 
prevailing treasury position and the size of the cost of debt repayment (premiums 
incurred).  

  
2.8.2 The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

 the generation of cash savings and/ or discounted cash flow savings; 

 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

 enhancing the balance of the portfolio (amending the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility).  

 
2.8.3 Consideration will also be given to identifying if there is any residual potential for making 

savings by reducing investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short term rates on 
investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt. 

 
2.8.4 Given the current structure of the Council debt, such re-scheduling activity is unlikely 

however, all re-scheduling will be reported to Cabinet and Council at the earliest meeting 
following its action. 

 
2.9 Local Capital Finance Company (originally Municipal Bond Agency)  
 
2.9.1 It is possible that Local Capital Finance Company will be offering loans to Local 

Authorities in the future. It is also hoped that the borrowing rates will be lower than those 
offered by the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). 

 
2.9.2 The Council has currently invested £0.100m in the Company and intends to make use of 

this new source of borrowing as and when appropriate. 
2.10 Annual Investment Strategy 
 

Investment Policy 
 
2.10.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and 

Local Government (MHCLG’s) Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the 

Page 28



 

 

Guidance”) and the CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and 
Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”). The Council’s investment 
priorities are: 

 

 firstly, the security of capital; 

 secondly, the liquidity of its investments; 

 thirdly, the optimum return on its investments comensurate with proper levels of 
security and liquidity; 

 finally, ethical investments. 
 
2.10.2 In accordance with the above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA, and in order to 

minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in 
order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables 
diversification and thus avoids risk concentration. The key ratings used to monitor 
counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings. 

 
2.10.3 Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution. It is important to 

continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and 
in relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. 
To achieve this consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a 
monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on 
top of the credit ratings  

 
2.10.4 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other such 

information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny 
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 

 
2.10.5 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Appendix 4 

under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. Counterparty limits will 
be set through the Council’s Treasury Management practices and are also included within 
Appendix 4. 

 
Non Treasury Investments 

 
2.10.6 Non-treasury investments are defined as the following categories: 
 

 All share holding, unit holding and bond holding, including those in a Local Authority 
owned company  

 Loans to a local authority company or other entity formed by a Local Authority to deliver 
services  

 Loans made to third parties  

 Investment property  
 
2.10.7 The Council has an approved loan facility arrangement in place with a partner 

orgainisation to assist with payroll costs should they require it. This facility only covers 
payroll costs for up to 2 months. The Council currently has no other finance arrangements 
or loans to Local Authority companies. Any such finance arrangements or loans would be 
subject to specific Cabinet approval.  

 
2.10.8 The Council may make loans to third parties, to provide support to organisations who are 

contributing to the delivery of the Strategic Priorities of the Council and may encounter 
difficulty in securing funds from other sources at affordable interest rates. Such loans will 
be in line with the Councils Constitution under the Financal Prodeures Rules.  

 

Page 29



 

 

2.10.9  For service reasons loans to third parties may be offered at an interest rate below the 
market rate. Where the loan is advanced at less than a market interest rate there is an 
associated loss of investment return which would otherwise have been earned on these 
monies. The cost to the Council in this respect would be reflected in the Council’s 
accounts. All loans to third parties will be recognised as investments and detailed within 
the Annual Investment Report.  

 
2.10.10 The Council has an approved Commercial Property Investment Strategy (CPIS). It has 

allocated resources and facilitated the introduction of activities required to promote the 
objectives of the strategy which include providing a sustainable income stream to support 
the Council’s budget from the acquisition of property assets. Investments in property may 
support / provide premises to third party organisations to deliver the economic 
development objectives of the Council and as mentioned above to optimise the return on 
the property portfolio. Appendix 4 includes a section on non treasury investments which 
highlights the maximum investment limits and maturity period per investment type and 
maximum financial limit if appropriate. 

 
2.10.11 The Council will evaluate the CPIS Investments to undertand the risks involved. It will 

ensure that staff have the necesarry skills and knowledge required and have regard to risk 
management considerations so that long term financial and risk implications can be 
assessed and mitigated.  

 
2.11 Creditworthiness policy 
 
2.11.1 Oldham Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services. 

This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising credit ratings from the 
three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poor. The credit 
ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit 
ratings; 

 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 
 
2.11.2 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in a 

weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads for 
which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to 
determine the duration and maximum investment value for each counterparty. 

 
2.11.3 Institutions are split into colour bandings and the Council will therefore use counterparties 

within these colours, durational bands and investment limits. Table 9 below shows these 
limits. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 30



 

 

 Table 9 Investment Criteria 

 
Link Colour Band and 

Long Term Rating 
where applicable 

Maximum 
Duration 

Maximum 
Principal 

Invested per 
Counterparty 

Banks Yellow (Note 1) 5 Years £10m 

Banks Dark Pink (Note 2) 5 Years £10m 

Banks Light Pink (Note 3) 5 Years £10m 

Banks Purple 2 Years £20m 

Banks Blue (Note 4) 1 Year £20m 

Banks Orange (Note 5) 1 Year £15m 

Banks Red 6 months £10m 

Banks Green 100 days £10m 

Banks No Colour Not to be used Not to be used 

Local Authorities Internal Due Diligence 5 Years £10m 

GMCA 
Internal Due Diligence 
(Note 6) 

5 Years £30m 

Debt Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF) 

UK Sovereign rating 6 months £20m 

 Fund Rating 
Maximum 
Duration 

Maximum 
Principal 

Invested per 
Counterparty 

Money Market Fund - 
Constant 

AAA Liquid £20m 

Money Market Fund - 
Low Volatile 

AAA Liquid £20m 

Money Market Fund - 
Variable 

AAA Liquid £20m 

 
Note 1 – UK Government debt or equivalent 
 
Note 2 – Enhanced money market funds (EMMF) with a credit score of 1.25 
 
Note 3 - Enhanced money market funds (EMMF) with a credit score of 1.5 
 
Note 4 – Blue Institutions only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks, 
which currently include the RBS Group (Royal Bank of Scotland, NatWest Bank and 
Ulster Bank). 
 
Note 5 - Includes the Council’s banking provider (currently Barclays), if it currently falls 
into category below this colour band. 
 
Note 6 – The higher maximum principal is to facilitate joint initiatives and activities related 
to the devolution agenda. 

 
2.11.4 The Link Asset Services creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than 

just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue 
preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 

 
2.11.5 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council uses will be a Short Term rating 

(Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be occasions when 
the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings 

Page 31



 

 

but may still be used. In this instance consideration will be given to the whole range of 
ratings available, or other topical market information, to support their use. 

 
2.11.6 All credit ratings will be monitored on a weekly basis. The Council is alerted to changes to 

ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness 
service. 

 If a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn or 
notice given to withdraw immediately. 

 In addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in the Credit Default Swap Index against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively to it by Link 
Asset Services. Extreme market movements may result in the downgrading of an 
institution or its removal from the Council’s lending list. 

 
2.11.7 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition the Council 

will also use market data and market information, information on any external support 
banks to help support the decision making process. 

 
2.12 Country and Sector Limits 
 
2.12.1 It is not proposed to restrict the Council’s investment policy to only UK banks and building 

societies, however in addition to the credit rating criteria set out above consideration will 
be given to the sovereign rating of the country before any investment is made. 

 
2.12.2 In February 2013 the UK lost its AAA rating and moved to an AA rating. The Council will 

continue to invest with UK Banks, providing the individual institutions still meet the 
relevant criteria. 

 
2.12.3 The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from non UK 

countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch (or equivalent). The 
list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown 
in Appendix 5. This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings 
change in accordance with this policy, therefore for illustrative purposes the appended list 
is extended to also show AA- i.e. the countries currently assessed to be in the rating 
below those that currently qualify. It is important to note that although able to, the Council 
has chosen not to invest overseas in recent years. 

 
2.13 Investment Strategy  
 
2.13.1 Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow requirements 

and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 months). 
The Council currently has investments totalling £18m which span the financial year as 
shown in Table 10. These investments are current as at February 2018. 

 
 Table 10 Investments maturing in 2018/19 

Counterparty Amount 
Maturity 

Date 
Rate 

Goldman Sachs International Bank £5,000,000 26/04/2018 0.51% 

Surrey Heath Borough Council £3,000,000 24/05/2018 0.52% 

Santander £2,500,000 5/07/2018 0.70% 

Bank of Scotland £2,500,000 95 day notice  0.70% 

Eastleigh Borough Council £5,000,000 23/07/2018 0.55% 

Total £18,000,000     

Page 32



 

 

2.13.2  The Bank Rate is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years to reach 
1.50% by quarter 1 2021. Bank rates forecasts for financial year ends are: 

 

 2017/18 0.50% 

 2018/19 1.00% 

 2019/20 1.25% 

 2020/21 1.50% 
 
2.13.3 The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for 

periods up to 100 days during each financial year are as follows. 
 

 2017/18 0.40% 

 2018/19 0.80% 

 2019/20 1.25% 

 2020/21 1.50% 

 2021/22 1.65% 

 2022/23 1.75% 

 2023/24 2.00% 
 
2.13.4 The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is skewed to the upside and are dependent 

on how strong Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth turns out, how quickly inflation 
pressures rise and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively. 

 
2.13.5 The Council will maintain sufficient cash reserves to give it its necessary liquidity and may 

place investments for up to seven years if the cash flow forecast allows and the credit 
rating criteria is met. 

 
2.13.6 The Council will avoid locking into longer term deals i.e., “more than 365 days” while 

investment rates are down at historically low levels unless attractive rates are available 
with counterparties of particularly high creditworthiness which make longer term deals 
worthwhile and within the risk parameters set by the Council. 

 
2.13.7 For daily cash management, the Council will seek to utilise its business reserve instant 

access accounts, 15 and 30 day accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits 
(overnight to 100 days) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest. 

 
Investment Treasury Indicator and Limit 

 
2.13.8 This indicator considers total principal funds invested for greater than 365 days. These 

limits have regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for the 
early redemption of investments, and are based on the availability of funds after each year 
end.  
 

Table 13 – Maximum principal sum invested greater than 364 & 365 days 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Principal sums invested > 364 & 
365 days 

£50m £50m £50m £50m 

 
2.14 Investment Risk Benchmarking 
 
2.14.1 These benchmarks provide simple guides to maximum risk, and may be breached from 

time to time, depending on movements in interest rates and counterparty criteria. These 
benchmarks provide Officers with a baseline against which current and trend positions 
can be monitored. It may be necessary to amend the operational strategy to manage risk 

Page 33



 

 

as conditions change. Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, with supporting 
reasons in the mid-year or Annual Report. 

 
Liquidity – in respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain: 
 

 Bank overdraft facility of £0.100m 

 Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available with a week’s notice. 
 

Yield - local measures of yield benchmarks are:  
 

 Investments – internal returns above the 7 day LIBID (London Interbank Bid Rate) rate 
multiplied by 5% 

 Investments – internal returns above the 1 month LIBID rate multiplied by 5% 

 Investments – internal returns above the 3 month LIBID rate multiplied by 5% 

 Investments – internal returns above the 6 month LIBID rate multiplied by 5% 

 Investments – internal returns above the 12 month LIBID rate multiplied by 5% 
 
2.14.2 At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of 

its Annual Treasury Report, which is in accordance with required practice and is 
presented to Cabinet and then Council for approval. 

 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 In order to comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, the Council 

has no option other than to consider and approve the contents of the report. Therefore no 
options/alternatives have been presented.  

 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 The preferred option is that the contents of this report are approved by Council. 
 
5 Consultation 
 
5.1 There has been consultation with Link Asset Services, Treasury Management Advisors. 

Consideration of the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money Select Committee is a key strand in the 
consultation process. The Select Committee scrutinised the proposed Treasury 
Management Strategy at its meeting on 25 January 2018 and was content to commend 

the report to Cabinet. Cabinet also considered and approved the Strategy at its 
meeting on 19 February 2017 and was content to commend the report to Council. 

 
5.2 The Audit Committee as its meeting of 11 January 2018 reviewed and considered the key 

features of the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy and were content with the issues 
as presented. 

 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 Financial Implications are detailed within the report. 
 
7 Legal Services Comments 
 
7.1 There are no legal implications. 
 
8 Co-operative Agenda 
 

Page 34



 

 

8.1 The Treasury Management strategy embraces the Council’s cooperative agenda. The 
Council will develop its investment framework to ensure it complements the co-operative 
ethos of the Council. 

 
9 Human Resources Comments 
 
9.1 There are no Human Resource Implications. 
 
10 Risk Assessments 
 
10.1 There are considerable risks to the security of the Authority’s resources if appropriate 

Treasury Management strategies and policies are not adopted and followed. The Council 
has established good practice in relation to Treasury Management which has previously 
been acknowledged in the Internal and External Auditors’ reports presented to the Audit 
Committee. 

  
11 IT Implications 
 
11.1 There are no IT Implications 
 
12 Property Implications 
 
12.1 There are no Property Implications. 
 
13 Procurement Implications 
 
13.1 There are no Procurement Implications. 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
14.1 There are no Environmental and Health & Safety Implications. 
 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
15.1 There are no Equality, community cohesion and crime implications. 
 
16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
16.1 No 
 
17 Key Decision 
 
17.1 Yes 
 
18 Key Decision Reference 
 
18.1 CFHR- 15-17  
 
19 Background Papers 
 
19.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 

with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not 
include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by 
the Act: 

 
File Ref:   Background papers are provided in Appendices 1 - 7 

  Officer Name:   Lee Walsh / Talei Whitmore 

Page 35



 

 

Contact No:   0161 770 6608/ 4924 
 
20 Appendices  
 

Appendix 1  Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement  
Appendix 2  Link Asset Services - Treasury Advisor’s Interest Rate Forecast 

2018-2021 
Appendix 3  Economic Background 
Appendix 4 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty 

Risk Management 
Appendix 5 Approved Countries for Investments 
Appendix 6 Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation  
Appendix 7 Treasury Management Role of the Statutory Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Finance) 
 

Page 36



27 

Appendix 1 – Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement  
 
1.1 General Principles and Practices 
 
1.1.1 Local Authorities are required to set aside ‘prudent’ provision for debt repayment where 

they have used borrowing or credit arrangements to finance capital expenditure. Ministry 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) regulations require the full 
MRP Statement to be decided upon at least annually and reported to the Council 
Meeting. The Council has to ensure that the chosen options are prudent. 

 
1.2 Link to Asset Life/Economic Benefit 
 
1.2.1 Where capital expenditure on an asset is financed wholly or partly by borrowing or credit 

arrangements, MRP will normally be determined by reference to asset life, economic 
benefit or MHCLG Guidance. 

 
1.2.3 To the extent that expenditure cannot be linked to the creation/enhancement of an asset 

and is of a type that is subject to estimated life periods that are referred to in the MHCLG 
guidance (paragraph 24), these periods will generally be adopted by the Council. 

 
1.2.4 Where certain types of capital expenditure incurred by the Council are not capable of 

being related to an individual asset, asset lives will be assessed on a basis which most 
reasonably reflects the anticipated period of benefit that arises from the expenditure. 

 
1.2.5 Whatever type of expenditure is involved, it will be grouped together in a manner which 

reflects the nature of the main component of expenditure and will only be divided up in 
cases where there are two or more major components with substantially different useful 
economic lives. 

 
1.3 Methods for Calculating MRP 
 
1.3.1 Any of the methods for calculating MRP that are set out below may be used. MRP will 

commence in the financial year after the completion of assets rather than when 
expenditure is incurred. All methods, with the exception of the approach taken to 
Previously Supported General Fund Borrowing are based on Asset Life/Economic 
Benefit. These methods include but are not limited to: 

 
The Annuity Method 

 
1.3.2 This calculation seeks to ensure the revenue account bears an equal annual charge (for 

principal and interest) over the life of the asset by taking account of the time value of 
money. Since MRP relates only to ‘principal’, the amount of provision made annually 
gradually increases during the life of the asset. The interest rate used in annuity 
calculations will be referenced to either prevailing or average PWLB rates. 

 
Equal Instalments of Principal 

 
1.3.3 MRP is an equal annual charge calculated by dividing the original amount of borrowing 

by the useful life of the asset. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 37



 

 

Previously Supported General Fund Borrowing 
 
1.3.4 General Fund Borrowing that was previously supported through the Revenue Support 

Grant (RSG) system will be provided for in equal annual instalments over a 50 year 
period commencing 1 April 2016. As at 1 April 2016, the value of this borrowing equalled 
£137,119,251 and results in an equal annual minimum revenue provision of £2,742,385; 
the final instalment of which will be provided for by no later than 31 March 2066. In the 
event of: 

 

 transfers of Capital Financing Requirement between the General Fund element and 
Housing element; 

 additional voluntary revenue provision being made 
 

the annual MRP charge will be adjusted to ensure that full provision will continue to be 
made by no later than 31 March 2066. 

 
Bespoke Repayment Profiles: 

 
1.3.5 With regard to credit arrangements that are implicit in Finance Lease or PFI 

arrangements, any ‘debt’ repayment element (notional or otherwise) included in charges 
associated with these arrangements will be classified as MRP. 

 
1.4 Voluntary Revenue Provision 
 
1.4.1 The Council has the option of making additional Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP) in 

addition to MRP. The Council may treat VRP as ‘up-front’ provision (having a similar 
impact to the early repayment of debt) and thus recalculate future MRP charges 
accordingly. Where the Council has made additional VRP’s for debt repayment in 
previous years, in year MRP charges may be adjusted to reflect this provided it does not 
result in a negative MRP charge. To the extent charges are adjusted, current and future 
year’s charges will be recalculated to ensure the Council continues to make prudent 
provision for debt repayment in relation to historic capital expenditure. The Council may 
in some circumstances apply VRP to relatively short-life assets/expenditure in order to 
facilitate a reduction in the future base revenue budget needed to fund capital financing 
costs. 

 
1.4.2 Where the Council has made additional voluntary revenue provision for debt repayment 

in previous years, in year MRP charges may be adjusted to reflect this provided it does 
not result in a negative MRP charge. To the extent charges are adjusted, current and 
future year’s charges will be recalculated to ensure the Council continues to make 
prudent provision for debt repayment in relation to historic capital expenditure. 

 
1.5 Local Exceptions to the Guidance 
 
1.5.1 The Council reserves the right to determine useful life periods and prudent MRP in 

certain circumstances or where the recommendations of the MHCLG guidance are not 
appropriate to local circumstances. Examples include: 

 
Assets under Construction 

 
1.5.2 No MRP charge will be made until the financial year after that in which an item of capital 

expenditure is fully incurred and, in the case of a new asset, comes into service use. 
 
  

Page 38



 

 

Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) 
 
1.5.3 The Council currently operates a Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) using the 

cash backed option. The mortgage lenders require a five year deposit from the Local 
Authority to match the five year life of the indemnity. The deposit placed with the 
mortgage lender provides an integral part of the mortgage lending and is treated as 
capital expenditure and a loan to a third party. The CFR will increase by the amount of 
the total indemnity. The cash advance is due to be returned in full at maturity, with 
interest paid annually. Once the cash advance matures and funds are returned to the 
Local Authority, the returned funds are classed as a capital receipt, which will be applied 
to reduce the CFR. As this is a temporary (five years) arrangement and the funds will be 
returned in full, there is no need to set aside MRP to repay the debt liability in the interim 
period. 

 
Loans to third parties 

 
1.5.4 The Council has considered the Statutory Guidance, which recommends a 25 year 

repayment charge for loans to third parties, and concluded that provision is not 
necessary. The Council considers an MRP charge is not necessary in respect of any 
loans made to third parties as the debt liability is covered by the existence of a debtor 
and the associated obligation to make repayments. 

 
1.6 Borrowing in Lieu of Capital Receipts 
 
1.6.1 The Council has concluded that MRP provision is not necessary for capital expenditure 

incurred in lieu of capital receipts. Any such schemes will be classified by the Capital 
Investment Programme Board (CIPB) as ‘Borrowing in Lieu of Capital Receipts’. CIPB 
will also determine which capital receipts will be allocated to the scheme and as the 
receipts are achieved they will be applied to repay the debt. 

 
The Application of Capital Receipts in Lieu of MRP 

 
1.6.2 Where the Council has received uncommitted and unapplied Capital Receipts, it retains 

the option to set aside those Capital Receipts as part of its arrangements for making 
‘prudent’ provision for debt repayment rather than using them for capital financing 
purposes. 

 
1.6.3 As Capital Receipts may form part of the Councils arrangements for making ‘prudent’ 

provision, setting aside Capital Receipts in this manner can be carried out in lieu of MRP 
whereby the MRP charge will be reduced by an amount equal to that set aside from 
Capital Receipts. 

 
1.7 HRA Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
1.7.1 MRP will equal the amount determined in accordance with the former regulations 28 and 

29 of the 2003 Regulations (SI 2003/3146) as if they had not been revoked. This 
approach is consistent with paragraph 7 of the MHCLG Guidance on MRP. 

 
1.7.2 The basic MRP charge relating to the HRA CFR is therefore nil. However, the Council 

may make ‘Voluntary Revenue Provision’ provided such an approach is prudent and 
appropriate in the context of financing the HRA capital programme and is consistent with 
the delivery of the HRA Business Plan. 

 

 

Page 39



30 

APPENDIX 2 – Link Asset Services Interest rate forecast 2018 – 2021 
PWLB rates and forecast shown below have taken into account the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012. 
 

 

P
age 40



31 

APPENDIX 3: Economic Background  
 
Set out below is a more detailed analysis of the Economic background used to support the preparation 
of the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement  
 
Global Outlook 
 
World growth looks to be on an encouraging trend of stronger performance, rising earnings and 
falling levels of unemployment. In October 2017, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) upgraded 
its forecast from 3.2% to 3.6% for 2017 and 3.7% for 2018. 
 
In addition, inflation prospects are generally muted and it is particularly notable that wage inflation 
has been subdued despite unemployment falling to historically very low levels in the UK and US. 
This has led to many comments by economists that there appears to have been a fundamental 
shift downwards in the Phillips curve (this plots the correlation between levels of unemployment 
and inflation e.g. if the former is low the latter tends to be high). In turn, raising the question; what 
has caused this? The likely answers probably lay in a combination of a shift towards flexible 
working, self-employment, falling union membership and a consequent reduction in union power 
and influence in the economy, and increasing globalisation and specialisation of individual 
countries, which has meant that labour in one country is in competition with labour in other 
countries which may be offering lower wage rates, increased productivity or a combination of the 
two. In addition, technology is probably also exerting downward pressure on wage rates and this is 
likely to grow with an accelerating movement towards automation, robots and artificial intelligence, 
leading to many repetitive tasks being taken over by machines or computers. Indeed, this is now 
being labelled as being the start of the fourth industrial revolution. 
 
Key risks- Central Bank Monetary Policy Measures 
 
Looking back on nearly ten years since the financial crash of 2008 when liquidity suddenly dried up 
in financial markets, it can be assessed that central banks’ monetary policy measures to counter 
the sharp world recession were successful. The key monetary policy measures they used were a 
combination of lowering central interest rates and flooding financial markets with liquidity, 
particularly through unconventional means such as Quantitative Easing (QE), where central banks 
bought large amounts of central government debt and smaller sums of other debt. 
 
The key issue now is that that period of stimulating economic recovery and warding off the threat of 
deflation is coming towards its close and a new period has already started in the US, and more 
recently, in the UK, on reversing those measures i.e. by raising central rates and (for the US) 
reducing central banks’ holdings of government and other debt. These measures are now required 
in order to stop the trend of an on-going reduction in spare capacity in the economy, and of 
unemployment falling to such low levels that the re-emergence of inflation is viewed as a major 
risk. It is, therefore, crucial that central banks get their timing right and do not cause shocks to 
market expectations that could destabilise financial markets. In particular, a key risk is that 
because QE-driven purchases of bonds drove up the price of government debt, and therefore 
caused a sharp drop in income yields, this then also encouraged investors into a search for yield 
and into investing in riskier assets such as equities. This resulted in bond markets and equity 
market prices both rising to historically high valuation levels simultaneously. This, therefore, makes 
both asset categories vulnerable to a sharp correction. It is important, therefore, that central banks 
only gradually unwind their holdings of bonds in order to prevent destabilising the financial 
markets. It is also likely that the timeframe for central banks unwinding their holdings of QE debt 
purchases will be over several years. They need to balance their timing to neither squash 
economic recovery by taking too rapid and too strong action, nor, alternatively, let inflation run 
away by taking action that was too slow and/or too weak. The potential for central banks to get this 
timing and strength of action wrong are now key risks. 
 

Page 41



 

 

There is also a potential key question over whether economic growth has become too dependent 
on strong central bank stimulus and whether it will maintain its momentum against a backdrop of 
rising interest rates and the reversal of QE. In the UK, a key vulnerability is the low level of 
productivity growth, which may be the main driver for increases in wages; and decreasing 
consumer disposable income, which is important in the context of consumer expenditure primarily 
underpinning UK GDP growth. 
 
A further question that has come to the fore is whether an inflation target for central banks of 2%, is 
now realistic given the shift down in inflation pressures from internally generated inflation, (i.e. 
wage inflation feeding through into the national economy), given the above mentioned shift down in 
the Phillips curve.  
 

 Some economists favour a shift to a lower inflation target of 1% to emphasise the need to 
keep inflation under control. Alternatively, it is possible that a central bank could simply 
‘look through’ tepid wage inflation, (i.e. ignore the overall 2% inflation target), in order to 
take action in raising rates sooner than might otherwise be expected. 

 However, other economists would argue for a shift up in the inflation target to 3% in order to 
ensure that central banks place the emphasis on maintaining economic growth through 
adopting a slower pace of withdrawal of stimulus.  

 In addition, there is a strong argument that central banks should target financial market 
stability. As mentioned previously, bond markets and equity markets could be vulnerable to 
a sharp correction. There has been much commentary, that since 2008, QE has caused 
massive distortions, imbalances and bubbles in asset prices, both financial and non-
financial. Consequently, there are widespread concerns at the potential for such bubbles to 
be burst by exuberant central bank action. On the other hand, too slow or weak action 
would allow these imbalances and distortions to continue or to even inflate them further. 

 Consumer debt levels are also at historically high levels due to the prolonged period of low 
cost of borrowing since the financial crash. In turn, this cheap borrowing has meant that 
other non-financial asset prices, particularly house prices, have been driven up to very high 
levels, especially compared to income levels. Any sharp downturn in the availability of 
credit, or increase in the cost of credit, could potentially destabilise the housing market and 
generate a sharp downturn in house prices. This could then have a destabilising effect on 
consumer confidence, consumer expenditure and GDP growth. However, no central bank 
would accept that it ought to have responsibility for specifically targeting house prices.  

 
United Kingdom 
 
After the UK surprised on the upside with strong economic growth in 2016, growth in 2017 has 
confounded pessimistic forecasts of weak growth by coming in at 1.8%, only marginally down on 
the 1.9% rate for 2016, In 2017 quarter 1 came in at only +0.3% (+1.8% year on year), quarter 2 
+0.3% (+1.5% year on year) and quarter 3 +0.4% (+1.5% year on year) and Q4 was +0.5% (+1.5% 
y/y). The outstanding performance came from the manufacturing sector which showed a 1.3% 
increase in Q4 and +3.1% y/y helped by an increase in exports due to the lower value of sterling 
over the last year and robust economic growth in our main trade partners, the EU and US. It is also 
notable that there has been a progressive acceleration in total GDP growth during the year which 
gives ground for optimism looking forward into 2018. 
 
While the Bank of England is expected to give forward guidance to prepare financial markets for 
gradual changes in policy, the Monetary Policy Committee, (MPC), meeting of 14 September 2017 
managed to shock financial markets and forecasters by suddenly switching to a much more 
aggressive tone in terms of its words around warning that Bank Rate will need to rise soon. The 
Bank of England Inflation Reports during 2017 have clearly flagged up that it expected Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) inflation to peak at just under 3% in 2017, before falling back to near to its target 
rate of 2% in two years’ time. The Bank revised its forecast for the peak to just over 3% at the 14 

Page 42



 

 

September meeting. (Inflation actually came in at 3.0% in both September and October so that 
might prove now to be the peak). This marginal revision in the Bank’s forecast can hardly justify 
why the MPC became so aggressive with its wording; rather, the focus was on an emerging view 
that with unemployment having already fallen to only 4.3%, the lowest level since 1975, and 
improvements in productivity being so weak, that the amount of spare capacity in the economy was 
significantly diminishing towards a point at which they now needed to take action. In addition, the 
MPC took a more tolerant view of low wage inflation as this now looks like a common factor in 
nearly all western economies as a result of automation and globalisation. However, the Bank was 
also concerned that the withdrawal of the UK from the EU would effectively lead to a decrease in 
such globalisation pressures in the UK, and so this would cause additional inflationary pressure 
over the next few years. 
 
At its 2 November 2017 meeting, the MPC duly delivered a 0.25% increase in Bank Rate. It also 
gave forward guidance that it expected to increase Bank Rate only twice more in the next three 
years to reach 1.0% by 2020. This is, therefore, not quite the ‘one and done’ scenario but is, 
nevertheless, a very relaxed rate of increase prediction in Bank Rate in line with previous 
statements that Bank Rate would only go up very gradually and to a limited extent. 
 
However, some forecasters are flagging up that they expected growth to accelerate significantly 
towards the end of 2017 and then into 2018. This view is based primarily on the coming fall in 
inflation, (as the effect of the effective devaluation of sterling after the EU referendum drops out of 
the CPI statistics), which will bring to an end the negative impact on consumer spending power. In 
addition, a strong export performance will compensate for weak services sector growth. If this 
scenario was indeed to materialise, then the MPC would be likely to accelerate its pace of 
increases in Bank Rate during 2018 and onwards.  
 
It is also worth noting the contradiction within the Bank of England between action in 2016 and in 
2017 by two of its committees. After the shock result of the EU referendum, the MPC voted in 
August 2016 for emergency action to cut Bank Rate from 0.50% to 0.25%, restarting £70bn of QE 
purchases, and also providing UK banks with £100bn of cheap financing. The aim of this was to 
lower borrowing costs, stimulate demand for borrowing and thereby increase expenditure and 
demand in the economy. The MPC felt this was necessary in order to ward off their expectation 
that there would be a sharp slowdown in economic growth. Instead, the economy grew robustly, 
although the Governor of the Bank of England strongly maintained that this was because the MPC 
took that action. However, other commentators regard this emergency action by the MPC as being 
proven by events to be a mistake. Then in 2017, we had the Financial Policy Committee (FPC) of 
the Bank of England taking action in June and September over its concerns that cheap borrowing 
rates, and easy availability of consumer credit, had resulted in too rapid a rate of growth in 
consumer borrowing and in the size of total borrowing, especially of unsecured borrowing. It, 
therefore, took punitive action to clamp down on the ability of the main banks to extend such credit. 
Indeed, a Price Waterhouse Cooper (PWC) report in October 2017 warned that credit card, car 
and personal loans and student debt will hit the equivalent of an average of £12,500 per household 
by 2020. However, averages belie wide variations in levels of debt with much higher exposure 
being biased towards younger people, especially the 25 -34 year old band, reflecting their lower 
levels of real income and asset ownership. 
 
One key area of risk is that consumers may have become used to cheap rates since 2008 for 
borrowing, especially for mortgages. It is a major concern that some consumers may have over 
extended their borrowing and have become complacent about interest rates going up after Bank 
Rate had been unchanged at 0.50% since March 2009 until falling further to 0.25% in August 2016. 
This is why forward guidance from the Bank of England continues to emphasise slow and gradual 
increases in Bank Rate in the coming years. However, consumer borrowing is a particularly 
vulnerable area in terms of the MPC getting the pace and strength of Bank Rate increases right - 
without causing a sudden shock to consumer demand, confidence and thereby to the pace of 
economic growth. 

Page 43



 

 

 
Moreover, while there is so much uncertainty around the Brexit negotiations, consumer confidence, 
and business confidence to spend on investing, it is far too early to be confident about how the 
next two to three years will actually pan out. 
 
Eurozone 
  
Economic growth in the Eurozone (EZ), (the UK’s biggest trading partner), had been lack lustre for 
several years after the financial crisis despite the European Central Bank (ECB) eventually cutting 
its main rate to -0.4% and embarking on a massive programme of QE. However, growth picked up 
in 2016 and has now gathered substantial strength and momentum thanks to this stimulus. GDP 
growth was 0.6% in quarter 1 2017 (2.1% year on year), 0.7% in quarter 2 (2.4% year on year) and 
+0.7% in quarter 3 (2.8% year on year). However, despite providing massive monetary stimulus, 
the European Central Bank is still struggling to get inflation up to its 2% target and in December 
2017 inflation was 1.4%. It is therefore unlikely to start on an upswing in rates until possibly 2019. It 
has, however, announced that it will slow down its monthly QE purchases of debt from €60bn to 
€30bn from January 2018 and continue to at least September 2018. 
 
United States  
 
Growth in the American economy was notably erratic and volatile in 2015 and 2016. This was 
replicated in 2017 with quarter 1 coming in at an annualised rate of only 1.2%, quarter 2 at 2.3%, 
quarter 3 at 3.1%, and quarter 4 at 2.6%. This gave an overall figure for annual growth in 2017 of 
2.6%, an acceleration from 1.5% in 2016. Unemployment in the US has also fallen to the lowest 
level for seventeen years, reaching 4.1%, while wage inflation pressures and inflationary pressures 
in general have been building. The Fed has started on a gradual upswing in rates with five 
increases in all and three increases since December 2016; a further increase in December 2017 
lifted the central rate from 1.25% to 1.50%. There could then be another four increases in 2018. At 
its September 2017 meeting, the Fed said it would start in October to gradually unwind its $4.5 
trillion balance sheet holdings of bonds and mortgage backed securities by reducing its 
reinvestment of maturing holdings. 
 
China 
 
Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated rounds of central 
bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing. Major progress still needs to be made to 
eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock of unsold property, and to address the level of 
non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems. 
 
Japan 
 
GDP growth has been gradually improving during 2017 to reach an annual figure of 2.1% in 
quarter 3. However, it is still struggling to get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary 
and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. 
 
Brexit  
 
The anticipated timetable and process is as follows; 
 

 March 2017: UK government notifies the European Council of its intention to leave under 
the Treaty on European Union Article 50  

 March 2019: initial two-year negotiation period on the terms of exit. In her Florence speech 
in September 2017, the Prime Minister proposed a two year transitional period after March 
2019. 

Page 44



 

 

 UK continues as a full EU member until March 2019 with access to the single market and 
tariff free trade between the EU and UK. Different sectors of the UK economy will leave the 
single market and tariff free trade at different times during the two year transitional period. 

 The UK and EU would attempt to negotiate, among other agreements, a bi-lateral trade 
agreement over that period.  

 The UK would aim for a negotiated agreed withdrawal from the EU, although the UK could 
also exit without any such agreements in the event of a breakdown of negotiations. 

 If the UK exits without an agreed deal with the EU, World Trade Organisation rules and 
tariffs could apply to trade between the UK and EU - but this is not certain. 

 On full exit from the EU: the UK parliament would repeal the 1972 European Communities 
Act. 

 
On exit, the UK will then no longer participate in matters reserved for EU members, such as 
changes to the EU’s budget, voting allocations and policies. 
  

Page 45



 

 

Appendix 4: Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management 
 
SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities 
up to a maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 
 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the specified 
investment criteria. A maximum of 50% will be held in aggregate in non-specified investment 
 
A variety of investment instruments will be used, subject to the credit quality of the institution, and 
depending on the type of investment made it will fall into one of the above categories. 
 
The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment vehicles are: 
 
Specified Investments 
 

 

 
Minimum credit 
criteria / colour 
band 

** Max % of 
total 
investments/ 
£ limit per 
institution 

Max. maturity 
period 

DMADF – UK Government 
Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 

N/A 100% 6 months 

UK Government gilts UK sovereign rating  £20m 12 months  

UK Government Treasury bills UK sovereign rating  £20m 12 months  

Bonds issued by multilateral development banks AAA £10m 6 months 

Money Market Funds AAA £20m Liquid 

Enhanced Cash Funds with a credit score of 
1.25  

AAA £20m Liquid 

Enhanced Cash Funds with a credit score of 1.5 AAA £20m Liquid 

Local authorities N/A £20m 12 months 

Term deposits with banks and building societies 

Blue 
Orange 
Red 
Green 
No Colour 

£20m 
£15m 
£10m 
£10m 
Not for use 

12 months  
12 months  
 6 months 
100 days 
Not for use 

CDs or corporate bonds with banks and building 
societies 

Blue 
Orange 
Red 
Green 
No Colour 

£20m 
£15m 
£10m 
£10m 
Not for use 

12 months  
12 months  
 6 months 
100 days 
Not for use 

Gilt funds  UK sovereign rating  £10m 12 months 

REPO’s (Collateralised deposit) 100% Collateral £5m 12 months 

GMCA 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

£30m 12 months 

Page 46



 

 

Accounting treatment of investments. The accounting treatment may differ from the underlying 
cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by the Council. To ensure that the 
Council is protected from any adverse revenue implications, which may arise from these 
differences, the accounting implications of new transactions will be reviewed before they are 
undertaken. 
 
 

Page 47



 

 

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: A maximum of 50% will be held in aggregate in non-specified 
investments 
 
Maturities in excess of 1 year 
 

 
* Minimum 
Credit Criteria 

Use 
£ limit per 
institution 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposits – local authorities and other 
public institutions  

-- In-house £10m 5 years 

Term deposits – banks and building societies  
Yellow 
Purple 

In-house 
£10m 
£10m 

5 years 
2 years 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks and 
building societies  

Yellow 
Purple 

In-house  
£10m 
£10m 

5 years 
2 years 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks and 
building societies 

Short-term F1 
Long-term AA  

Fund Managers £5m 2 years 

Collateralised deposit 
UK sovereign 
rating  

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

£5m 2 years 

UK Government Gilts  
 UK sovereign 
rating  

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

£10m 5 years 

Bonds issued by multilateral development 
banks  

AAA  
In-house and 
Fund Managers 

£10m 3 years 

Sovereign bond issues (other than the UK 
Government)  

AAA  
In-house and 
Fund Managers 

£5m 2 years 

Corporate bonds 
Short-termF1 
Long-term AA 

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

£5m 5 years 

Green Energy Bonds 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house and 
Fund Managers 

£10m 10 years 

Property Funds 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house  £30m 10 years 

Floating Rate Notes Long Term A In-house  £5m 5 years 

REPO’s (Collateralised deposit) 100% Collateral In-house £5m 5 years 

GMCA 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house £30m 5 years 

Covered Bonds Long term A In-house £5m 5 years 

Local Capital Finance Company (Municipal 
Bonds Agency) 

Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house £1m 10 years 

Local Authority Fixed Income Fund 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house £5m 10 years 

Unrated Bonds, backed by securitised Assets 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house and 
fund managers 

£5m 5 years 

Asset Backed Pooled Investment Funds 
Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house and 
fund managers 

£5m 5 years 

Fixed term deposits with variable rate and 
variable maturities  
 

Internal Due 
Diligence 

In-house and 
External Advice 

£20m 50 years 

Page 48



 

 

NON-TREASURY INVESTMENTS: The Council has already or may in the future undertake 
investments in non-treasury activities this may be via a number of routes as outlined in the table 
below which considers the minimum credit criteria, a maximum financial limit per category if 
appropriate and a maximum maturity period. 
 

 
* Minimum 
Credit Criteria 

Use 
£ limit per 
category 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Loans made to third parties are investments – 
Adhoc loans including existing long term 
debtors  

Service Delivery 
objectives 

In-house 

N/A 
To be 
determined 
based on 
business 
appraisal 

40 years 

Loans made to third parties are investments – 
LAMS – The Council as guarantor.  

Service Delivery 
objectives 

In-house £5m 5 years 

Investment Property – Property Purchased for 
service delivery/economic regeneration 

Service Delivery 
objectives 

In-house 

N/A 
To be 
determined 
based on 
business 
appraisal  

50 years 

Investment Property – Property purchased 
solely for the generation of income.  

Appraisal 
Criteria in line 
with the Council 
Commercial 
Property 
Investment 
Strategy 

In-house, 
external 
specialist.  

N/A 
To be 
determined 
based on 
business 
appraisal 

50 years 

Page 49



 

 

APPENDIX 5: Approved Countries for Investments (as at February 2018) 

 

AAA 

 Australia 

 Canada 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Netherlands 

 Norway 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

 Finland 

 U.S.A. 

 

AA 

 France 

 U.K. 

 

AA- 

 Belgium 

Page 50



 

 

APPENDIX 6: Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
 
The scheme of delegation is as follows: 
 
Full Council is the responsible body for: 

 receiving and reviewing reports on Treasury Management policies, practices and activities; 
 the approval of the annual strategy, mid-year review and outturn report. 
 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s Treasury Management Policy Statement and 

Treasury Management Practices; 
 budget consideration and approval; 
 approval of the division of responsibilities; 
 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations; 

 
Cabinet is the responsible body for: 

 considering the Treasury Management Policy and Procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

 considering Treasury Management reports and commending to Council. 
 
Audit Committee is responsible for scrutiny: 

 reviewing the Treasury Management Policy and Procedures and making recommendations 
to the responsible body. 

 Reviewing Treasury Management reports and making recommendations to the responsible 
body. 

 
Cabinet Member for Finance and HR is responsible for: 

 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of appointment 

Page 51



 

 

APPENDIX 7: The Treasury Management Role of the Statutory Chief Finance Officer 
(Director of Finance) 
 
The Statutory Chief Financial Officer will discharge the Treasury Management role by: 
 

 recommending Treasury Management Policy/Practices for approval, reviewing the same 
regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

 submitting regular Treasury Management policy reports; 
 submitting budgets and budget variations; 
 receiving and reviewing Treasury Management information reports; 
 reviewing the performance of the Treasury Management function; 
 ensuring the adequacy of Treasury Management resources and skills, and the effective 

division of responsibilities within the Treasury Management function; 
 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit processes, and liaising with external audit; 
 recommending the appointment of external service providers.  

 

 

Page 52



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018

Oldham Council

February 2018

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Deep business understanding 4

3. Significant risks identified 5

4. Reasonably possible risks identified 7

5. Other matters 8

6. Materiality 9

7.   Group audit scope and risk assessment 10

8.   Value for Money arrangements 11

9. Audit logistics, team & audit fees 12

10. Early close 13

11. Independence & non-audit services 14

Appendices

A. Revised ISAs 15

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the

Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.

We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,

nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

John Farrar

Associate Director

T:  0161 234 6384

E: john.farrar@uk.gt.com

Helen Stevenson

Manager

T: 0161 234 6354

E: helen.l.stevenson@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 

is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 54



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory

audit of Oldham Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit

Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and

end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are also

set in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public

Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as auditor of

Oldham Council. We draw your attention to both of these documents on the PSAA

website.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on

Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement) that have been

prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance (the

Audit Committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency

and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Committee

of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper

arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is

safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling

these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is

risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as:

• management override of controls

• valuation of property, plant and equipment

• valuation of pension fund liability

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 

260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £11.0m (PY £9.4m), which equates to 2% of your forecast gross expenditure for the year. We are obliged to 

report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at

£0.55m (PY £0.47m). 

Value for Money 

arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risks:

• working with partners: examine progress to establish a Local Care Organisation to unite health and social care needs across Oldham and consider how 

the Council is working with the CCG to develop the future structure and expected pooled budget   

Audit logistics Our interim visit will take place in March 2018 and our final visit will take place in June 2018.  Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our Audit 

Findings Report.

Our fee for the audit will be no less than £135,621 (PY: £135,621) for the Council.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent 

and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements

Audit Report Oldham Council has approximately £7m of debt listed on the London Stock Exchange. An entity with listed debt is a Public Interest Entity (PIE), which has 

enhanced audit reporting requirements under ISA (UK) 700.  Further details are set out in Appendix A.

P
age 55

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 4

Deep business understanding

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources, including your progress on devolution as part of our work in reaching our Value for Money 

conclusion.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements. 

• We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial  reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going 

discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

• As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code and revised 

stock valuation guidance for the HRA.

Changes to service delivery

Our response

Key challengesChanges to financial reporting requirements

Commercialisation

The scale of investment 

activity, primarily in 

commercial property, has 

increased as local authorities 

seek to maximise income 

generation. These 

investments are often 

discharged through a 

company, partnership or 

other investment vehicle. 

Local authorities need to 

ensure that their commercial 

activities are presented 

appropriately, in compliance 

with the CIPFA Code of 

Practice and statutory 

framework, such as the 

Capital Finance Regulations. 

Where borrowing to finance 

these activities, local 

authorities need to comply 

with CIPFA’s Prudential 

Code. A new version was 

published in December 2017.

Devolution

The Cities and Local 

Government Devolution Act 

2016 provides the legal 

framework for the 

implementation of devolution 

deals with combined 

authorities and other areas. 

Greater Manchester (GM) is 

leading the way in the 

devolution agenda with the 

devolution of powers, 

budgets and responsibility to 

the Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority already 

underway. Oldham is 

already utilising the new 

powers to integrate health 

and social care and are 

aiming to take this forward 

with Oldham CCG by 

creating a Local Care 

Organisation. Looking ahead 

GM devolution will also 

extend to a coordinated 

transport infrastructure 

across Greater Manchester. 

Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 (the 

Regulations)

The Ministry of Housing 

Communities and Local 

Government (HCLG) is 

currently undertaking a review 

of the Regulations, which may 

be subject to change. The date 

for any proposed changes has 

yet to be confirmed, so it is not 

yet clear or whether they will 

apply to the 2017/18 financial 

statements.

Under the 2015 Regulations 

local authorities are required to 

publish their accounts along 

with the auditors opinion by 31 

July 2018.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

DCLG has issued revised 

guidance on the calculation of the 

Item 8 Determination for 2017/18, 

which :

- - extends transitional 

arrangements for reversing 

impairment charges and 

revaluation losses on dwelling 

assets and applies this 

principle to non-dwelling 

assets from 2017/18,

- - confirms arrangements for 

charging depreciation to the 

HRA and permitting 

revaluation gains that reverse 

previous impairment and 

revaluation losses to be 

adjusted against the HRA.

Changes to the CIPFA 2017/18 Accounting Code 

CIPFA have introduced other minor changes to the 2017/18 Code 

which confirm the going concern basis for local authorities, and 

updates for Leases, Service Concession arrangements and financial 

instruments.

Financial pressures

The Council continues to 

address the challenge of 

reducing resources and 

increases in demand, 

particularly in caring for the 

needs of the most vulnerable 

children and adults in the area. 

The Council has set out its 

budget proposals for 2018/19 

and Medium Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS) covering 

2018/19 to 2021/22 following 

the latest Local Government 

Finance Settlement. The 

Council must address a 

forecast £39.6m budget gap in 

the four years to 2021/22. The 

Council has utilised reserves of 

£6.5m in 2017/18 to manage 

the budget and is planning a 

further use of £7m to balance 

the 2018/19 budget. The 

Council has good foundations 

in place to address the budget 

gap over the remaining MTFS 

period.

Impacts of Grenfell Tower 

fire

The Grenfell Tower fire 

disaster in 2017 has led to 

the identification of 

approximately 150 high 

rise buildings in local 

authority ownership that 

have failed fire safety 

tests. Local authorities are 

expected to make these 

buildings fire safe and the 

Council is working to 

ensure that this the case.  

HCLG are reviewing the 

current restrictions on the 

use of the financial 

resources that prevent 

local authorities from 

making essential fire 

safety upgrades.

P
age 56



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 5

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material 

misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 

magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that

revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of

revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that 

there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating 

to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the 

revenue streams at the Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud 

arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including 

Oldham Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Oldham

Council.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk 

that the risk of management over-ride of controls is present in 

all entities. . The Council faces external scrutiny of its 

spending, and this could potentially place management under 

undue pressure in terms of how they report performance.

Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special 

audit consideration.

We will:

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements 

applied and decisions made by management and consider their 

reasonableness 

• obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual journal 

entries for appropriateness

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or 

significant unusual transactions.

P
age 57



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of property, 

plant and equipment
The Council revalues its land and buildings on an rolling 

basis over a five yearly basis to ensure that carrying value 

is not materially different from fair value. This represents a 

significant estimate by management in the financial 

statements.

We identified the valuation of land and buildings 

revaluations and impairments as a risk requiring special 

audit consideration and a key audit matter for the audit.

.

We will:

 review management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the 

instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

 consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of management experts used

 discuss the basis on which the valuation is carried out with the valuer and challenge the 

key assumptions

 review and challenge the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and 

consistent with our understanding

 test revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's 

asset register

 evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the 

year and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different 

to current value

 test material additions and disposals and review the depreciation calculation

 review the Council’s consideration of any asset impairment.  

Valuation of pension 

fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as reflected 

in its balance sheet represent  a significant estimate in the 

financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net liability 

as a risk requiring special audit consideration and a key 

audit matter for the audit.

We will:

 identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is 

not materially misstated. We will also assess whether these controls were implemented as 

expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement

 evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your 

pension fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation 

is carried out

 undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made

 check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to 

the financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary

 review the Council’s accounting for its early payment to the pension fund during 2017/18. 

Significant risks identified

P
age 58



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 7

Reasonably possible risks identified

Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be 

reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk 

of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of 

the business.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Employee remuneration Payroll expenditure represents a significant percentage of the Council’s 

operating expenses. 

As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual transactions 

and sub-systems there is a risk that payroll expenditure in the accounts 

could be understated. 

The Council also implemented an updated HR/payroll system that 

integrates with the financial ledger which went live in April 2017.

We identified completeness of payroll expenses as a risk requiring particular 

audit attention

We will

• evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of payroll

expenditure for appropriateness

• update our understanding of the Council's system for accounting

for payroll expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated

controls

• agree payroll expenditure from sub-systems to general ledger

control accounts

• perform a predictive analytical review of payroll expenditure and

compare to the reported figures

• examine Internal Audit work to substantively test the accuracy of

a sample of payroll expenses from the updated system.

Operating expenses Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also represents a 

significant percentage of the Council’s operating expenses. Management 

uses judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced costs. 

We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk requiring 

particular audit attention: 

We will

• evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of non-

pay expenditure for appropriateness

• update our understanding of the Council's system for accounting

for non-pay expenditure and evaluate the design of the

associated controls

• agree creditor balance to general ledger control account

• test a sample of operating expenditure to ensure it is accounted

for in the correct period.

Private finance schemes (PFI) The Council have 7 PFI schemes in place with various complexities in 

accounting for them.

We identified the accuracy of accounting for the PFI schemes as an area 

requiring particular audit attention.

We will:

• update our understanding of the Council’s systems for calculating

PFI liabilities, and accounting for its PFI schemes

• test entries in the accounts to underlying supporting evidence.

P
age 59



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 8

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other

audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 

Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued and consistent with our 

knowledge of the Council.

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the 

financial statements on which we give an opinion and that the disclosures included in 

it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 

Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, 

including:

• giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18 

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 

relation to the 2017/18 financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of 

State.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material

misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each

material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material

balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will

not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the

appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is

a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)

570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and

evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

P
age 60



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 9

Materiality

The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and

applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if

they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the

gross revenue expenditure of the Council for the financial year. In the prior year we

used the same benchmark. We have determined planning materiality (the financial

statements materiality determined at the planning stage of the audit) to be £11.0m (PY

£9.4m), which equates to 2% of your gross expenditure for the prior year. We design

our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we

become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a

different determination of planning materiality

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to

our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit

Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are

identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged

with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements

other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260

(UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken

individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative

criteria. In the context of the Council, we propose that an individual difference could

normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.55m (PY £0.47m).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of

the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the

Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Gross expenditure

£551m

Materiality

Gross expenditure Materiality

£11m

Whole financial 

statements materiality

(PY: £9.3m)

£0.55m

Misstatements reported 

to the Audit Committee

(PY: £0.47m)

P
age 61



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 10

Group audit scope and risk assessment

In accordance with ISA (UK) 600, as group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the components 

and the consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable 

financial reporting framework.

Component Significant?

Level of response required 

under ISA (UK and Ireland) 600 Risks identified Planned audit approach

Miocare limited 

subsidiary

No Analytical N/A Desktop review performed by 

Grant Thornton UK

Audit scope:

Comprehensive – the component is of 

such significance to the group as a whole 

that an audit of the components financial 

statements is required

Targeted – the component is significant to 

the Group, audit evidence will be obtained 

by performing targeted audit procedures 

rather than a full audit

Analytical – the component is not 

significant to the Group and audit risks can 

be addressed sufficiently by applying 

analytical procedures at the Group level

P
age 62



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 11

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in

November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are

required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood 

that proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.

Health and Social Care Integration: working with partners

Oldham Council and CCG continue to work together to redesign the way

health and social care services are delivered across the borough. They are

working with Pennine Care Foundation Trust and Pennine Acute Trust to

establish joint commissioning arrangements through a Local Care

Organisation.

The Council and CCG have introduced interim operating arrangements with

the intention of creating a pooled budget with a Strategic Joint Commissioning

Board.

Working with partners from different organisations and service areas with 

potentially conflicting priorities, the project is complex and high profile. 

We will review the project management and risk assurance frameworks 

established by the Council to establish how it is identifying, managing and 

monitoring these risks. 

Informed 

decision 

making

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria

P
age 63



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 12

Audit logistics, team & audit fees

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are no less than £135,621 (PY: £135,621) for the financial 

statements audit and £13,361 indicative fees for the certification of grant claims. Our fees 

for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy certification, which falls under the 

remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited Fees in respect of other grant work, 

such as reasonable assurance reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Council and its 

activities, do not significantly change.

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have detailed 

our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. If the 

requirements detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit 

and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

John Farrar, Engagement Lead

John leads our relationship with you and takes overall responsibility 

for the delivery of a high quality audit, meeting the highest 

professional standards and adding value to the Council.

Helen Stevenson, Audit Manager

Helen plans, manages and leads the delivery of the audit, is your 

key point of contact for your Finance team and is your the first point 

of contact for discussing any issues.

Planning and

risk assessment 

Interim audit

Feb/March 2018

Year end audit

June 2018

Audit 

committee

March 2018

Audit

committee

July 2018

Audit

committee

TBC

Audit 

Findings 

Report

Audit 

opinion

Audit 

Plan
Annual 

Audit 

Letter

P
age 64



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 13

Early close
Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 

ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with 

us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 

accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with 

you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 

reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise 

agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, we will ensure that:

• the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff

• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly 

meetings during the audit

• we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the 

financial statements. 

Meeting the early close timeframe

Bringing forward the statutory date for publication of audited local government 

accounts to 31 July this year, across the whole sector, is a significant challenge 

for local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time available to 

prepare the accounts is curtailed, while, as auditors we have a shorter period to 

complete our work and face an even more significant peak in our workload than 

previously. We note however that Oldham Council have successfully met earlier 

deadlines over a number of years.

We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources 

available to us during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall 

level of resources available to deliver audits, we have focused on:

• bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits

• starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing which 

authorities will have accounts prepared significantly before the end of May

• seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits

• working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly, 

including early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data 

requirements and early discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to 

complete your audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient 

time to meet the earlier deadline. 

Client responsibilities

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure 

that this does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of 

time, thereby disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line 

with the timetable set out in audit plans (as detailed on page 12). Where the 

elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not 

meetings its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, 

where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client not 

meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by 

the statutory deadline. Such audits are unlikely to be re-started until very close to, 

or after the statutory deadline. In addition, it is highly likely that these audits will 

incur additional audit fees.

P
age 65



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 14

Independence & non-audit services 
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 

or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make

additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. 

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 

requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified

Service £ Potential threats Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Teachers 

Pension Return

4,600 Self-Interest (because 

this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  

for this work is £4,600 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £135,621 and in particular relative to Grant 

Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 

factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related

Miocare Group CIC 

accounts preparation

TBC Self review The work is being completed by a separate commercial audit team who have no direct involvement in the audit 

of the Council’s accounts. 

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are

consistent with the Group’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit Committee. Any changes and full details of all 

fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our 

Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

P
age 66



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18

Appendices

A. Revised ISAs

P
age 67



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18 16

Appendix A:  Revised ISAs

Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report Description of the requirements

Key Audit Matters (KAM) We will be required to include matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 

the current period. These matters will be selected from those matters communicated with those charged with governance. The auditor’s 

report will include a description of the KAM, our response and key observations.

Conclusions relating to going concern We will be required to conclude and report whether:

• The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate 

• The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. 

Material uncertainty related to going 

concern

We will need to include a brief description of the events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to 

continue as a going concern when a material uncertainty has been identified and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

Other information We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:

• Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

• A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

• Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors 

and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Other matters which we are required to 

address 

We will be required to include details of who appointed us, date of appointment, period of uninterrupted engagement, non-audit services, 

and that the audit opinion is consistent with the Audit Findings Report.

Format of the report Under the revised ISAs the format of the auditors report will change and, in particular the opinion section appears first followed by the basis 

of opinion section.

P
age 68



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Oldham Council  |  2017/18

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Informing the audit risk assessment 

Enquiries to those charged with 

governance – Oldham Council

Year ended  31 March 2018

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018

John Farrar

Engagement Lead

T 0161 234 6384

E john.farrar@uk.gt.com

Helen Stevenson

Engagement Manager

T 0161 234 6354

E helen.l.stevenson@uk.gt.com

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 8



The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 

particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 

your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared 

solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 

consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 

or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 

prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

.

P
age 72



Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

Financial Reporting and Internal Control 5

Fraud 6

Fraud Risk Assessment 7 

Laws and Regulations 10

Impact of Laws and Regulations 11 

Going Concern 13

Going Concern Considerations 14 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 33

Going Concern Considerations 14 

Related Parties 16

Related Party Consideration 17

Estimates 18

Estimate Considerations  19

P
age 73



Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between auditors and the Council's Audit

Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required 

to make inquiries of the Audit Committee under auditing standards. 

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA(UK&I)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit 

Committee. ISA(UK&I) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Committee and also specify 

matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 44

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a 

constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit Committee and supports 

the Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Audit Committee's 

oversight of the following areas:

• Financial reporting and internal control

• Fraud

• Laws and regulations

• Going concern

• Related party transactions

• Accounting estimates.

This report includes a series of questions on each area with provision for responses from both management and the Audit Committee. We 

suggest that Management should complete the relevant sections before submitting these responses to the Audit Committee. The Audit 

Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with the its understanding, before completing the relevant sections 

applicable to them.

P
age 74



Financial reporting and internal control

Questions for Management Management response

What do you regard as the key events or issues that will have 

a significant impact on the financial statements (including the 

Group) for 2017/18?

Nothing significant at this stage. There are two elements to the Group 

Accounts of the Council being the Councils own financial statements and 

those of MioCare a 100% owned Council Company. They are subject to a 

different accounting regime to prepare their accounts which are both subject to 

separate audit.

Have you considered the appropriateness of the accounting 

policies adopted by the Council (including the Group)? Have 

there been any events or transactions that may cause you to 

change or adopt new accounting policies?

The appropriateness of the accounting policies are subject to external audit.

There are no events or transactions which cause concern.

Scrutinised at this Committee.

Are you aware of any changes to the Council's regulatory 

environment (laws, accounting standards, corporate 
No. Both sets of accounts have been prepared in accordance with appropriate 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 55

environment (laws, accounting standards, corporate 

governance & other regularity requirements) that may have a 

significant impact on the Council's financial statements 

(including the Group)?

No. Both sets of accounts have been prepared in accordance with appropriate 

accounting standards.

How would you assess the quality of the Council's and the 

Group's internal control processes?
The internal control environment is assessed as robust. MioCare are subject 

to both internal and external audit scrutiny.

How would you assess the Council's and the Group's process 

for reviewing the effectiveness of internal control?
This is assessed as robust as evidenced by joint working to ensure a new 

payroll system is installed with appropriate internal controls.

How do the Council's and the Group's risk management 

processes link to financial reporting?
The Accounts of MioCare are scrutinised by the Performance and Value for 

Money Select Committee.

Is there any use of financial instruments, including 

derivatives?
The Council has undertaken borrowing in the past utilising LOBO’s 

Are you aware of any significant transactions outside the 

normal course of business?
No.

P
age 75



Fraud

Issue

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK&I) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit Committee and management. Management, with the

oversight of the Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of 

honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and 

inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 66

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due 

to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management 

override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 

management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks

• communication with the Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both 

management and the Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out 

in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with provision for responses to inform both auditor's and those charged with 

governance.

P
age 76



Fraud risk assessment

Questions for Management Management response

How would you assess the Council’s and the Group's 

arrangements for identifying and responding to the risk of fraud?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements this year?

The arrangements for detecting fraud are robust.

No significant frauds were detected during 2017/18.

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk of fraud, 

been identified and what has been done to mitigate these risks?
Yes. The Council in 2015/16 was targeted by a potential procurement fraud which if 

it had not been prevented would have led to a significant loss. In recognition of the 

on-going risk it has been included in the regular Corporate Governance reports to 

this Committee.

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, in place Yes. In all systems for 2017/18 there are agreed processes to check on 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 77

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, in place 

and operating effectively?

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions have 

been taken?

Yes. In all systems for 2017/18 there are agreed processes to check on 

transactions. There are issues identified in the operation of some systems which 

have been highlighted in reports to the Audit Committee and included in the Annual 

Governance Statement. Where appropriate extra testing has been carried out by 

both internal and external audit due to known issues on processes to provide extra 

assurance. Detailed Action Plans are in place subject to regular follow up to improve 

processes for issues included in the Annual Governance Statement.

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 

controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 

process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 

financial targets)?

This risk is low and is mitigated by the automated nature of the accounting, financial 

reporting and reconciliation processes at month end and at year-end. Senior 

Manager review is carried out in accordance with agreed procedures. 

Reconciliations exist within all key systems and are carried out monthly and subject 

to review.

Are there any areas where there is a potential for misreporting 

override of controls or inappropriate influence over the financial 

reporting process?

As stated above, financial reporting is highly automated and supported by formal 

and regular reconciliations which are reviewed by Internal Audit as part of its review 

of the main financial systems (and via agreed relevant operational audits included in 

the AFCPP). The detailed quality assurance processes as part of the close down of 

the accounts includes a technical review of all statements, notes and working 

papers.

P
age 77



Fraud risk assessment

Questions for Management Management response

What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues and risks  to 

the Audit Committee?
Fraud issues and risks are reported by the Head of Corporate Governance in

the A&CFP, The Fraud and Loss Risk Assessment, specific reporting to key

members of the Audit Committee and if appropriate included in the Annual

Governance Statement.

How does the Council communicate and encourage ethical 

behaviour of its staff and contractors?
The Staff Code of Conduct sets out the standards expected for a range of

matters, including “Gifts & Hospitality”, “Standards”, “Disclosures of

Information”, “Political Neutrality”, “Relationships”, Contractors” and

“Behaviour during Tendering Processes”. The Code is included as part of the

Council’s induction training. n terms of elected Members the Council operates

a Standards Committee that reports to full Council where appropriate

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 88

a Standards Committee that reports to full Council where appropriate

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud? 

Have any significant issues been reported?
The Whistleblowing Policy sets out the arrangements for staff to anonymously

report potential concerns and is included in the Staff Code of Conduct.

Following a risk assessment process the Audit and Counter Fraud Team will

investigate allegations discretely, agree a course of action and agree

recommendations. Where significant issues arise external audit will be briefed.

Are you aware of any related party relationships or transactions 

that could give rise to risks of fraud?
None recorded. Contract Procedure Rules set out procedures for procurement

and this service is audited appropriately by internal audit. No significant issues

which will impact on the financial statements have been identified in 2017/18.

Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or alleged, 

fraud, within the Council (or Group Component) during the current 

financial period (since 1 April 2017)?

Yes. The most significant potential loss has been included within the Annual 

Governance Statement and issues around the Transparency Agenda and the 

potential risks it poses for future loss are under active consideration.

P
age 78



Fraud risk assessment

Questions for  Audit Committee Audit Committee response

How does the Audit Committee oversee management's processes 

for:

• carrying out an assessment of the risk the financial statements 

may be materially misstated due to fraud or error

• identifying and responding to the risk of breaches of internal 

control

• identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation 

(including any specific risks of fraud which management have 

identified or that have been brought to its attention, or classes 

of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a risk 

The outcome of reviews are reported to the Audit Committee on a regular

basis via reports on the Internal Control matters across each area of the

Council and the A&CFP Progress Reports.

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 99

of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a risk 

of fraud is likely to exist)

• communicating to employees its views on appropriate business 

practice and ethical behaviour (for example by updating, 

communicating and monitoring against the codes of conduct)?

Is the Audit Committee aware of any actual, suspected or alleged 

fraud? If so please provide details.
Yes. The significant potential loss to the Council has been included in the 

Annual Governance Statement to ensure the future risks in relation to 

potential losses from the Transparency Agenda are addressed in future.

Has the Audit Committee considered the risk of material 

misstatements (misreporting ) by management?
Yes. The Audit Committee will review the Draft Statement of Accounts at its 

meeting in early May 2017. These will then be reviewed before approval with 

the external audit findings in July following the Statutory Consultation.

What is the Audit Committee's assessment of the impact of 

misappropriation on the statements?
Not applicable as there were no identified misappropriation at this time, 

following review, the Audit Committee approved the 2016/17 Statement of 

Accounts as there were no material errors. In line with prior years, in 2017/18 

the Committee will take a decision based upon the findings of external audit.

P
age 79



Laws and regulations

Issue

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA(UK&I)250 requires us to consider the impact  of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the Council's operations are conducted in 

accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to 

fraud or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are 

required to make inquiries of management and the Audit Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1010

required to make inquiries of management and the Audit Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. 

Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-

compliance and the possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with provision for management's response to inform both auditor's and 
those charged with governance.

P
age 80



Impact of  Laws and regulations

Questions for Management Management response

What arrangements does the Council (including the Group)  have in 

place to prevent and detect non-compliance  with laws and regulations, 

(incl accounting standards and corporate governance requirements)?

The Council has an agreed Constitution setting out how decisions 

are taken within the legal framework. All reports to the Council’s 

Cabinet and Cabinet Members include the requirement to have 

appropriate comments from Statutory Officers setting out the 

financial, legal, risk and procurement implications. At the audit 

level,Internal Audit will review whether the Council has arrangements 

in place to identify the necessary legal framework and appropriate 

steps have been taken to consider the risks. Specific training is 

organised where appropriate by relevant teams including Legal 

Services.

How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws, regulations 

and standards have been complied with?
As above.

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1111

and standards have been complied with?
As above.

Have there been any instances of  non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with law and regulation since 1 April 2017, or earlier with an 

on-going impact on the 2017/18 financial statements?

No issues of this nature have been identified since this date.

What are your policies and procedures for identifying, assessing and 

accounting for litigation and claims?
The Head of Corporate Governance works with colleagues in Legal 

Services to identify and respond to any risks arising from litigation. 

Specific risks are detailed in the Annual Governance Statement.

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the 

financial statements?
In terms of insurance, an Actuarial Review is undertaken to estimate 

the value of outstanding claims. An assessment is also undertaken of 

all other potential matters at the year-end and any financial 

considerations are included within the accounts.

Have there been any reports from other regulatory bodies, such as HM 

Revenues and Customs which indicate non-compliance?
There maybe a need to consider a voluntary declaration to the 

Pensions Regulator in respect of Auto Enrolment. In addition certain 

returns made to HMRC require review.

P
age 81



Impact of  Laws and regulations

How is the Audit Committee provided with assurance that all relevant laws, 

standards, requirements and regulations have been complied with?
The Head of Corporate Governance identifies and reports mitigation against 

legal risks as part of his regular reporting to the Audit Committee. This 

officer also produces an annual report and ad hoc reports as required. 

Can you provide details of those solicitors utilised by the Council during the 

year. Please indicate where they are working on open litigation or 

contingencies from prior years?

There are a number of solicitors both internal and external working on 

Council business. The most significant of these will be verbally reported to 

the Audit Committee.

Can you provide details of other advisors consulted during the year and the 

issue on which they were consulted?
Given the complexity of the organisation a number of advisors were used. 

The most significant of these will be verbally reported to the Audit 

Committee.

Questions for Management Management response

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1212

Questions for Audit Committee Audit Committee response

Is the Audit Committee aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws, 

standards, requirements and regulations?
No. There have not been any issues brought to the attention of the 

Audit Committee.

If there have been instances of non-compliance, what oversight has the Audit 

Committee had to ensure that actions are taken by management to address 

any gaps in control?

Regular reports to the Audit Committee by the Head of Corporate 

Governance would set out issues of non compliance and, where 

required, agreed actions by managers to prevent this happening 

going forward.

Is the Audit Committee aware of any actual or potential litigation or claims 

that would affect the financial statements?
The risk of any claim which is material has been highlighted in the 

Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17.

Have any of the Council’s service providers reported any items of fraud, 

non-compliance with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements 

which would affect the financial statements of the Council?

No

P
age 82



Going Concern

Issue

Matters in relation to Going Concern

ISA(UK&I)570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern 

assumption in the financial statements.

The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under this assumption entities are 

viewed as continuing in business for the foreseeable future. Assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to 

realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The code of practice on local authority accounting requires an authority’s financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis. 

Although the Council is not subject to the same future trading uncertainties as private sector entities, consideration of the key features of 

the going concern provides an indication of the Council's financial resilience.

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1313

As auditor, we are responsible for considering the appropriateness of use of the going concern assumption in preparing the financial 

statements and to consider whether there are material uncertainties about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern that need to 

be disclosed in the financial statements. We discuss the going concern assumption with management and review the Council's financial 

and operating performance. 

Going concern considerations have been set out below with provision for management's response to inform both auditor's and those
charged with governance.

P
age 83



Going Concern Considerations 

Questions for Management Management response

What is the process for undertaking a rigorous assessment of 

going concern: in particular

• Is the process carried out proportionate in nature and depth to 

the level of financial risk and complexity of the organisation and 

its operations?

• How will you ensure that all available information is considered 

when concluding the organisation is a going concern at the date 

the financial statements are approved?

The Council produces a Corporate Monitor report detailing estimated out-

turn which is reported to Executive Management Team and Cabinet for 

months 3,6,8,9 which identifies all the key issues for the Council. This is 

to be used to assess liability for the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts

Has the senior officer team carried out an assessment of the going 

concern basis for preparing the financial statements? What was 
This is to be undertaken by the Director  of Finance at  the year-end to 

support the budget setting process which was agreed  on 28th February 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1414

concern basis for preparing the financial statements? What was 

the outcome of that assessment? 
support the budget setting process which was agreed  on 28th February 

2018

Is management aware of the existence of other events or 

conditions that may cast doubt on the Council's ability to continue 

as a going concern?

Yes. Managers are kept informed of the potential future financial risks by 

the Director of Finance. This is informed by the production of a 4 year 

Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Are arrangements in place to report the going concern 

assessment to the Audit Committee?
Yes. This report is submitted to the Audit Committee alongside both the 

Draft and Audited Statement of Accounts

Are the financial assumptions in that report (e.g., future levels of 

income and expenditure) consistent with the Business Plan and 

the financial information provided to throughout the year?

Yes. Business Planning is done in consultation with the Director of 

Finance

Are the implications of statutory or policy changes appropriately 

reflected in the Business Plans, financial forecasts and report on 

going concern?

Yes. The Council’s Corporate (Strategic) Plan and Operational Plan 

reflect relevant statutory and/or policy changes, which are incorporated 

into the financial planning process.

P
age 84



Going Concern Considerations

Questions for Management Management response

Have there been any significant issues raised with the Audit 

Committee during the year which could cast doubts on the

assumptions made? (Examples include adverse comments raised 

by internal and external audit regarding financial performance or 

significant weaknesses in systems of financial control).

No. However the appropriate issues for this Committee to consider have 

been the subject of regular reports and have been included in the Annual 

Governance Statement where appropriate.

Does a review of available financial information identify any adverse 

financial indicators including negative cash flow?

If so, what action is being taken to improve financial performance?

No adverse financial indicators have been identified

Financial information for revenue and capital expenditure is reported 

regularly to managers so performance can be tracked and any action 

taken if required.

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1515

taken if required.

Does the Council have sufficient staff in post, with the appropriate 

skills and experience, particularly at senior manager level, to ensure 

the delivery of the Council's objectives?

If not, what action is being taken to obtain those skills?

Yes. Performance against the Council’s objectives is regularly monitored 

and reported

N/A

Questions for Audit Committee Audit Committee response

How does the Audit Committee satisfy itself that it is appropriate to 

adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial 

statements?

Yes. The draft Accounting Policies were subject to early review. The Audit 

Committee will also consider the draft Statement of Accounts which 

include the assumptions to support the reported out-turn. 

P
age 85



Related parties

Issue

Matters in relation to related parties

ISA(UK&I) 550  covers auditor responsibilities relating to related party transactions.

Many related party transactions are in the normal course of business and may not carry a higher risk of material misstatement. However in 

some circumstances the nature of the relationships and transaction may give rise to higher risks.

For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance 

with IAS 24: related party disclosures. The Code identifies the following as related parties to local government bodies:

entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries)

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1616

entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries)

associates

• joint ventures in which the Council is a venturer

• an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over the Council

• key officers, and close members of the family of key officers

• post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the 

Council.

The Code notes that, in considering materiality, regard should be had to the definition of materiality, which requires materiality to be 

judged from the viewpoint of both the Council and the related party.

ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls 

that you have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures 

you make in the financial statements are complete and accurate.

P
age 86



Related Party Considerations 

Question Management response

Who are the Council's Related Parties? The Council’s related parties are:

• Central Government

• Elected Members of the Council Officers

• Officers

• Other Public Bodies to whom the Council pays a Levy

• Other Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council

What are the controls in place to identify, account for, and disclose, There is a separate disclosure (Note 13) in the Councils Annual 

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1717

What are the controls in place to identify, account for, and disclose, 

related party transactions and relationships?
� There is a separate disclosure (Note 13) in the Councils Annual 

Statement of Accounts 2017/18 (subject to audit) setting out the key 

transactions with all Related Parties.

� Members’ Register of Interest

� Members’ Allowances disclosed in Note 8

� Appropriate recording of Gifts and Hospitality by Staff

� Officers’ Remuneration reported in Note 9

� Local Code of Local Authority Accounting 2016 sets out the relevant 

information to disclose

� Internal and External Audit monitor compliance

� Council operates a Standards Committee

� Levy Bodies are subject to a separate external audit process

� Members’ Code of Conduct

� Officers’ Code of Conduct

P
age 87



Estimates
Issue

Matters in relation to Accounting Estimates

Local authorities need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial statements. Accounting estimates are used when it is not 

possible to measure precisely a figure in the accounts. ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements for auditing accounting estimates. 

The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are reasonable and the related disclosures are adequate.

We need to obtain an understanding of:

• how management identifies the transactions, events and conditions that give rise to the need for an accounting estimate.

• how management actually make the estimates, including the control procedures in place to minimise the risk of misstatement.

We need to be aware of all estimates that the Council is using as part of its accounts preparation. These are set out overleaf. The audit 

procedures we conduct on the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:

• the estimate is reasonable; and

• estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1818

• estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.

P
age 88



Estimate considerations

Questions for Management Management response

Are management aware of transactions, events and conditions (or changes in 

these) that may give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant accounting 

estimates that require significant judgment?

The current assumptions are to be disclosed in Note 36 to the 

Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts 2017/18 (subject to 

audit).

Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies and/or un-asserted claims 

that may affect the financial statements?
No. The Accounts have been prepared on the basis that 

known claims are included within provisions.

What is the current position on significant issues included as contingencies and 

provisions as at 31 March 2018 as reported in the prior year’s audited accounts?
The significant issues identified at the 2017/18 year-end are 

been managed to limit the impact on the Council

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018 1919

Are management arrangements for the accounting estimates, set out on the 

following pages reasonable?
Yes. They have already been subject to Audit Committee 

Scrutiny on 1st March 2018

How is the Audit Committee provided with assurance that the arrangements for 

accounting estimates are adequate?
The draft Accounts are presented before the external audit is 

undertaken.

P
age 89



Estimate Method

Controls 

used to 

identify 

estimates

Use of an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

• assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

• consideration of alternative 

estimates

Change in 

accounting 

method in year?

Property Plant

and Equipment 

Valuations

Assets are capitalised at 

cost

where they have more 

than 1 year of operational 

life.

Agreed 

Accounting

Policy subject 

to

Audit 

Committee

Internal 

qualified

finance staff

Capital expenditure over £10,000 

is recognised and capitalised

No

Estimate considerations

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018

Committee

agreement

Depreciation

and 

amortisation

The systematic allocation 

of

depreciable amounts over 

the useful life of the asset

Agreed 

Accounting

Policy subject 

to

Audit 

Committee

agreement

Internal 

qualified

finance staff

No change in year, assumptions 

are prudent based on the asset life

No

Estimated 

remaining 

useful lives of 

PPE

Asset useful 

lives are 

based on the 

valuation 

reports 

provided by 

the Council’s 

Valuer

Valuation 

reports

Professional 

Valuers

No change. Useful lives are based 

on the professional judgement of 

the Valuers Assumption that the 

spend on repairs and maintenance 

will be sustained reducing any 

doubt over the useful lives 

assigned to assets

No

P
age 90



Estimate Method

Controls used 

to identify 

estimates

Use of an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

• assessment of degree of uncertainty

• consideration of alternative estimates

Change in 

accounting 

method in year?

Impairments Regular valuation 

programme, assets revalued 

at least once every five years

Accounting 

policies subject 

to early Audit 

Committee 

review for 

Appropriateness

CIPFA Code of 

Practice on

Local Authority 

Accounting

Agreed 

impairment 

• Impairments are recognised in the 

accounts if they are assessed as material 

and not due for a programmed valuation.

• Ad hoc valuations are commissioned where 

appropriate to support the review of

impairment

No

Estimate considerations

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018

Appropriateness impairment 

review

completed by 

professionally

qualified 

Valuers

impairment

Bad Debt 

Provision

Internal Professional

Review following production 

of outstanding debt balance 

at 31 March 2018.

A review was 

undertaken

of outstanding 

debt as at 31 

March 2018

The 

assessment is

undertaken by 

qualified

finance staff

• System stability to enable professional

decisions to be taken

• Balance of outstanding debtors

• Current collection rates are maintained

• Current economic climate indicates

assumptions are robust

No

P
age 91



Estimate considerations

Estimate Method

Controls used to 

identify estimates Use of an expert

Underlying assumptions:

• assessment of degree of uncertainty

• consideration of alternative estimates

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year?

Provisions Internal Professional

Review supported by

appropriate external

support where

appropriate.

• Record of

Outstanding

Insurance Claims

recorded on 

Figtree.

• List of Legal 

Cases

Actuarial 

evaluation

undertaken for 

Insurance

Provision

All other 

assessments 

• Chain letter method of actuarial assessment

used for insurance claims.

• Municipal Mutual Insurance will result in the

Council paying a full contribution

• Exact liability cannot be quantified at the time 

the estimates were prepared.

• The assumptions on revaluations for business 

No

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018

Cases

outstanding 

recorded

by Council

assessments 

done

internally by 

Finance Staff

consulting with 

other staff

including Legal 

Services

where appropriate

• The assumptions on revaluations for business 

rate refunds are sufficient

Accruals Income and expenditure is

recognised in the

accounts in the period in

which it is incurred

Documented 

processes

embedded in the

closedown 

timetable

The quality 

assurance is

undertaken by 

qualified

finance staff

• Information provided by budget managers 

which is then subject to validation by Finance 

Staff before input on the ledger

• Assumption that debtors will remain solvent to 

pay money owed

No

P
age 92



Estimate Method

Controls used 

to identify 

estimates

Use of an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

• assessment of degree of uncertainty

• consideration of alternative 

estimates

Change in 

accounting method in 

year?

Investment held 

for Sale – MAG 

shareholding

Agreed Approach for all the 

Association of Greater 

Manchester Authorities 

(AGMA) Shareholders

Approach 

agreed

at AGMA level

BDO Stoy

Hayward

• Valuation is earnings based

• Annual Accounts are not subject to future

revision in future years

• Valuation is subject to annual review

No

Estimate considerations

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018

(AGMA) Shareholders • Valuation is subject to annual review

PFI Finance 

Lease Liability

Liability is assessed on each 

PFI scheme individually as 

detailed in Note 28 to the

Council’s Annual Statement 

of Accounts 2017/18  (to be 

subject to audit)

PFI Contracts Internal 

qualified

finance 

staff

• Assumptions in respect of inflation are 

based on current projections. These can 

change over time.

• The assessment of the deferred liability 

takes no account of the PFI Credits which 

will offset the overall liability by the end of 

the PFI Scheme

No

P
age 93



Estimate Method

Controls used 

to identify 

estimates

Use of an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

• assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

• consideration of alternative 

estimates

Change in 

accounting method in 

year?

Pension Liability Local Government Pension

Scheme disclosed as a 

defined benefit scheme (Note 

29)

Teachers and National Health 

• Actuarial 

valuation

provided by 

Hymans

Robertson LLP 

for

GM Pension 

Fund

Actuary 

Hymans

Robertson 

LLP for

• The Council’s Annual Statement of 

Accounts (subject to audit) are based on 

the actuarial report as at end of March 

2018. 

• Contributions for Teachers Pension 

No

Estimate considerations

©  2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Oldham MBC – Enquiries to  Management and TCWG   |   January 2018

Teachers and National Health 

Service Scheme disclosed as 

a

defined contribution scheme

(Note 29)

for

defined benefit

Scheme

• Financial

Ledger for 

defined 

contribution

Schemes

LLP for

Local 

Government

Pension 

Scheme

• Contributions for Teachers Pension 

Scheme will be subject to a separate 

audit during 2018/19 on 2017/18 data.

Non adjusting 

events – events 

after the balance 

sheet date

Professional Judgement as at

May 2017 when the

Council’s Annual Statement 

of Accounts were provided for

Audit

Professional 

Judgement

Internal 

professional

judgement 

following

consultation 

with the

Director of 

Finance

• The assumptions made as at May 2017

will not have changed when the 

Statement of Accounts is audited

No

P
age 94



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 
The report sets out the Council’s proposed accounting policies and critical judgements to be 
adopted in completing the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts and updates Members on the main 
differences from 2016/17. 
  
Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the Audit Committee approves the Council’s proposed accounting policies, 
to be adopted in completing the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts and notes the critical judgements.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report to Audit Committee 
 

2017/18 Proposed Accounting Policies and Critical Judgements  
 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Abdul Jabbar MBE – Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Human Resources  
 
Officer Contact:  Anne Ryans, Director of Finance  
 
Report Author:  Lee Walsh, Finance Manager (Capital and Treasury) 
Ext. 6608 
 
1 March 2018 
 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
It is recommended (in line with best practice) by the Council’s External Auditors that the 
proposed accounting policies to be used to prepare the Council’s 2017/18 Statement of 
Accounts are approved by the Council’s Audit Committee.   
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



 

  2 

Audit Committee  1 March 2018 
 
1 Introduction  
 
1.1 This report presents the accounting policies that will be used in the preparation of 2017/18 

Statement of Accounts and summarises the changes from 2016/17 introduced as a result 
of amendments to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2017/18 (the Code) 
or as part of the Council’s annual review process. The report also explains the 
requirement to include a notes on the critical judgements used in the production of the 
Statement of Accounts which have been presented alongside the accounting policies in 
line with best practice. 

 
2. Accounting Policies  
 
2.1 The Council’s accounting policies are the specific principles, conventions, rules and 

practices that are applied in the production and presentation of the annual Statement of 
Accounts. These policies have to be disclosed as a note to the annual accounts, a copy of 
the policies can be found at Appendix 1.  

 
2.2 There have been no significant changes to the Code for the 2017/18 financial year, 

therefore the majority of accounting policies remain consistent with those previously 
presented at Audit Committee. However, as part of the closedown process a review of 
accounting policies is undertaken to ensure they accurately reflect the processes of the 
Council, are understandable to the users of the accounts and have been updated to 
reflect current guidance presented in the Code. 

 
2.3 Following this review the following amendments have been made:  
 

 1.1 The introduction to the accounting policies clarifies the Council’s 
conventions with regards to the presentation of financial data.  

 1.10 Employee Benefits – the terminology relating to the Employee Absence 
Accrual has been updated to ensure consistency throughout the Statement of 
Accounts.  

 1.15 Reserves – the accounting policy has been updated to ensure it 
encompasses both usable reserves, those available to support Council 
expenditure and unusable reserves, those which are held to absorb statutory 
accounting entries. 

 1.20 Interests in Companies and Other Entities – this accounting policy has been 
simplified following the decision to produce Group Accounts in 2016/17. 

 
2.4 It is recommended (in line with best practice) by External Audit that the proposed 

Accounting Policies to be used to prepare the Council’s 2017/18 Statement of Account 
are approved by the Council’s Audit Committee.  

 
3 Critical Judgements  
 
3.1 In line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Code the Council 

is required to disclose those judgements that management have made in the process of 
applying the Council’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements, these are shown at Appendix 2. 
Judgements taken include, which schools property, plant and equipment and PFI should 
be included on the Council’s balance sheet, which entities fall within the Council’s group 
boundary and which properties should be classified as investment property. 
 

3.2 The Council has included one additional Critical Judgement for 2017/18, this relates to the 
accounting treatment for the Council’s upfront payment to the Greater Manchester 

Page 98



 

  3 

Pension Fund (GMPF). For the 3 year period from 2017/18 – 2019/20 the Council has 
agreed with GMPF that the Council’s employer contributions to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme can be made as a single upfront payment in order to facilitate a 
significant saving. The Council has accounted for the future years element of the payment 
as a reduction in the pension liability. 
 

3.3 The judgement relating to the recognition of Schools on the Council’s Balance Sheet has 
been updated to reflect the transfer of two schools to Academy Status.   

 
4 Options/Alternatives 
 
4.1 The options that Audit Committee Members might consider in relation to the contents of 

this report are: 
 

a) not to approve any of the Accounting Policies or note the Critical Judgements.  

b) not to approve some of the Accounting Policies or note the Critical Judgements.  

c) to approve all the Accounting Policies and note the Critical Judgements. 
 

5 Preferred Option 
 
5.1 The preferred option is that Audit Committee Members approve all the Accounting 

Policies as set out in Appendix 1 and note the Critical Judgements and set out at 
Appendix 2. 

 
6 Consultation 
 
6.1 Consultation has taken place with the Councils External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP. 
 
7 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 Dealt with in the body of the report.  
 
8 Legal Services Comments 
 
8.1 There are no Legal implications.  
 
9 Co-operative Agenda 
 
9.1 Improving the quality and timeliness of the financial information available to citizens of 

Oldham supports the cooperative ethos of the Council. 
 
10 Human Resources Comments 
 
10.1 There are no Human Resource implications.   
 
11 Risk Assessments 
 
11.1 There are no risk implications as a result of this report.   
 
12 IT Implications 
 
12.1 There are no IT implications as a result of this report  
 
13 Property Implications 
 
13.1 There are no Property implications.  

Page 99



 

  4 

14 Procurement Implications 
 
14.1 There are no Procurement implications.  
 
15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
15.1 There are no Environmental and Health & Safety implications as a result of this report.   
 
16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
16.1 There are no Equality, community cohesion and crime implications.   
 
17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
17.1  Not Applicable 
 
18 Key Decision 
 
18.1 No 
 
19 Key Decision Reference 
 
19.1 Not Applicable. 
 
20 Background Papers 
 
20.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 

with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not 
include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by 
the Act: 
 
File Ref:     Background Papers are provided at Appendices 1 and 2. 
Officer Name:   Lee Walsh 
Contact No:      0161 770 6608 

 
21 Appendices  
 
21.1 Appendix 1 – 2017/18 Proposed Accounting Policies  
 Appendix 2 – 2017/18 Proposed Critical Judgements 
   

Page 100



Appendix 1.  2017/18 Proposed Accounting Policies 
 
1.1 General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial 
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2018. The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require 
the accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These 
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code) supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments. 
  
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the assumption that the 
Council will continue in existence for the foreseeable future. 
 
Unless otherwise stated the convention used in this document is to round to amounts to the 
nearest thousand pounds. All totals are the rounded totals of unrounded figures and, 
therefore, may not be the strict sums of the figures presented in the text or tables. 
Throughout the Statements all credit balances are shown with parentheses e.g. (£1,234).  
  
 
1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected 
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s 
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. The Council has a £10,000 de 
minimis limit for the recognition of Capital Expenditure.  
 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 
• the purchase price 
• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for 

it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
• the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 

site on which it is located. 
 

Page 101



The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 
• community assets, infrastructure assets and assets under construction – depreciated 

historical cost 
• dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social 

housing (EUV-SH) 
• surplus assets – fair value, determined by the measurement of the highest and best 

use value of the asset.  
• all other operational assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be 

paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV). 
 
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature 
of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 
For non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
 
Assets included on the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to 
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the 
year end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits 
to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services where they arise from the 
reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.  
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 
 
• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 

the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the 
amount of the accumulated gains) 

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant Portfolio line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment  
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 
 
• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 

the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the 
amount of the accumulated gains) 

Page 102



• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant Portfolio line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
Portfolio line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount 
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had 
not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for 
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community 
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases: 
 
• dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the 

property as estimated by the valuer 
• vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful life of 

the  asset as estimated by a suitably qualified officer 
• infrastructure – straight-line allocation up to 40 years. 

 
Revaluation gains are depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Component Accounting 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and/or whose life is significantly different to 
the life of the host (main) asset, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Components are recognised in the financial year where: 
 
• there has been a revaluation of assets;  
• there has been an acquisition of assets within the financial year; and 
• enhancement expenditure has been incurred within the financial year 
 
Disposals 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from 
disposals are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying 
value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset 
in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
The written-off asset value of disposals is not a charge against the General Fund, as the 
cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital 
financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Page 103



 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. If 
the disposal relates to housing assets a proportion of the capital receipt is payable to the 
Government (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions 
and allowances). The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Useable Capital 
Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to 
reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts 
are transferred to the Useable Capital Receipts Reserve from the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
1.3 Heritage Assets 
 
The Council’s Heritage Assets are held by the Council principally for their contribution to 
knowledge and/or culture. They are recognised and measured including treatment of 
revaluation gains and losses in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on 
Property Plant and Equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed 
allowing the Council’s Heritage Assets to be included on the Balance Sheet at their insured 
value where available. Where insurance valuations are not available there is a narrative 
disclosure. 
 
Heritage assets are deemed to have an indefinite life, therefore are not depreciated as the 
charge made would be minimal and immaterial. Nevertheless, where there is evidence of 
physical deterioration to a Heritage Asset, or doubts arise to its authenticity, the value of the 
asset has to be reviewed. 
 
1.4 Investment Property 
 
Investment properties are those assets that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on 
the highest and best use value of the asset. Investment properties are not depreciated and 
an annual valuation programme ensures that they are held at highest and best use value at 
the Balance Sheet date. Gains and losses on revaluation are charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to 
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and charged to 
the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the 
Useable Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
1.5 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts 
 
PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for 
making available the Property, Plant and Equipment needed to provide the services passes 
to the PFI contractor. As the Council is deemed to control the services that are provided 
under its PFI schemes, and as ownership of the Property, Plant and Equipment assets will 
pass to the Council at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries 
the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

Page 104



 
The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the 
Property, Plant and Equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts 
due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment. Non-current assets recognised 
on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as Property, Plant and 
Equipment owned by the Council. 
 
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements: 

 
• The value of the services received during the year – debited to the relevant service in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
• Finance cost – an interest charge is raised on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability 

and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The interest rate is calculated for 
each scheme so that the Balance Sheet liability is zero at the end of each contract.  

• Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the 
contract, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

• Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability.  
• Lifecycle replacement costs – are split between revenue and capital costs. Revenue 

lifecycle costs are debited to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Capital lifecycle costs are debited to Property Plant and 
Equipment to reflect the enhancement of the PFI Asset. 

 
1.6 Accounting for Schools 
 
In line with accounting standards and the Code on group accounts and consolidation, all 
maintained schools are considered to be entities controlled by the Council. Rather than 
produce group accounts the income, expenditure, assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows 
of each school are recognised in the Council’s single entity accounts. The Council has the 
following types of maintained schools under its control: 
 
• Community 
• Voluntary Aided 
• Voluntary Controlled 
• Foundation Trust 
• Foundation 
 
Schools’ non-current assets (school buildings and playing fields) are recognised on the 
Balance Sheet where the Council directly owns the assets, where the Council holds the 
balance of control of the assets or where the school or the school governing body own the 
assets or have had rights to use the assets transferred to them through a licence 
arrangement.  
 
When a maintained school converts to an Academy, the schools non-current assets held on 
the Council’s Balance Sheet are treated as a disposal. The carrying value of the asset is 
written off to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
The written-off asset value is not a charge against the General Fund, as the cost of non-
current asset disposals resulting from schools transferring to an Academy is fully provided 
for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

Page 105



 
1.7 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset that has been charged as 
expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this 
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then 
reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of Council Tax. 
 
1.8 Capital Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 
• depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
• revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written 
off  

• amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service 
 

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in approved Minimum Revenue 
Provision policy. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses, and amortisation are 
replaced by Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). This adjusting transaction is included in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement with the Capital Adjustment Account charged with the 
difference between the two amounts. 
 
1.9 Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective rate of interest is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at 
which it was originally recognised. 
 
For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in 
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest), and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable 
for the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where 
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the 
modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively 
deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-

Page 106



down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the 
loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 
 
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be 
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount 
receivable when it was repaid.  When a premium or discount has been incurred and paid in 
full by a grant from an external body it is accounted for in full in the year that the grant is 
received. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is 
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 
• loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not 

quoted in an active market 
• available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have 

fixed or determinable payments. 
 
Loans and Receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the 
Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in 
the loan agreement. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a 
charge made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount 
and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Available-for-Sale Assets 
 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and 
carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the 

Page 107



asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed 
or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council. 
 
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following 
hierarchy: 
 
• instruments with quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets – market 

price  
• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow 

analysis 
• equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company 

valuations. 
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the 
gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale 
Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset 
accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or 
fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the 
revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, 
the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of 
the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously 
recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, as a valuation is not possible or would not 
give a materially different result, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment 
losses). 
 
Instruments Entered Into Before 1 April 2006 
 
The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to be 
accounted for as financial instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts, to the extent that provisions might be required or a contingent liability note is 
needed under the policies set out in the section on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets. 
 
1.10 Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, flexi 
and time off in lieu (TOIL) as well as bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. mobile 

Page 108



phones) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in 
which employees render service to the Council. 
 
Employee Accumulated Absence Accrual 
 
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in 
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates 
applicable in the current accounting year. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement 
so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday 
entitlement occurs. 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant 
services lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of 
when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council 
recognises costs for a restructuring. 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to 
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are 
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of three separate pension schemes: 
 

 The Greater Manchester Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council.  

 The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on 
behalf of the Department for Education (DfE). 

 The NHS Pension Scheme, administered by EA Finance NHS Pensions.  
 
These schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), 
earned as employees working for the Council. 
 
However, the arrangements for the teachers’ and NHS schemes mean that liabilities for 
these benefits cannot be identified specifically to the Council. These schemes are therefore 
accounted for as if they are a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future 
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods Portfolio line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
charged with the employer’s contributions payable to Teachers’ Pension Scheme in the year. 
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is charged with the employer’s contributions payable to the NHS Pension Scheme 
in the year. 
 
 
 

Page 109



The Greater Manchester Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Greater Manchester Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined 
benefits scheme. 
 
The liabilities of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method; an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates 
and projections of future earnings for current employees. Liabilities are discounted to their 
value at current prices, using a discount rate (based on the indicative rate of return on a 
basket of high quality corporate bonds, Government gilts and other factors). 
 
The assets of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included 
in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 
 
• quoted securities – current bid price 
• unquoted securities – professional estimate 
• unitised securities – current bid price 
• property – market value. 
 
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into following components:  
 
• current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned in 

the current year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
to the services for which the employees worked 

• past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years will be 
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs 

• net interest on the net defined benefit liability - the change during the period in the net 
defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. This is calculated by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined 
benefit liability at the beginning of the period, taking into account any changes in the 
net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit 
payments 

 
Remeasurement comprising: 
 
• the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 

defined benefit liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

• actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

• Contributions paid to the Greater Manchester Pension Fund - cash paid as employer 
contributions to the pension scheme in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an 
expense. 
 
Statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the accounting standards. In the Movement in 

Page 110



Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and 
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on 
the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of 
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than 
as benefits are earned by employees. 

 
1.11 Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received.  
 
Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that may not be collected.  
 
1.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid 
investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk a change in value. 
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.  
 
1.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits 
or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For 
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the 
obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – 
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made) the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim) it is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council 
settles the obligation. 
 

Page 111



Contingent Liabilities  
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets  
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential. 
 
1.14 Government Grants and Contributions  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
 
• the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
• the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied 
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 
Where revenue grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement but have yet to be used to fund revenue expenditure, it is posted to the Revenue 
Grant Reserve. When eligible expenditure is incurred in future years the grant is transferred 

Page 112



back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is 
no net charge against Council Tax for the expenditure. 
 
1.15 Reserves 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against 
Council Tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are held to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, 
financial instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent 
usable resources for the Council. These reserves are further explained in the relevant 
policies.    
 
1.16 Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is defined as the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the 
reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net worth. 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. In most 
cases, the consideration receivable is in the form of cash and cash equivalents and the 
amount of revenue is the amount of cash and cash equivalents receivable. Where the 
Council is acting as an agent of another organisation the amounts collected for that 
organisation are excluded from revenue. 
 
Revenue relating to the sale of goods is recognised when the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably, it is probable the revenue will be received by the Council and the risks 
and rewards of ownership have passed to the purchaser. Revenue relating to the provision 
of services is recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is 
probable the revenue will be received by the Council and the stage of completion of the 
service can be measured. 
 
1.17 Tax Income  
 
Council Tax, Retained Business Rates and Top-up income included in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for the year will be treated as accrued income. 
 
Business Rates, Top-up and Council Tax income will be recognised in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement within the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line. 
As a billing Authority, the difference between the Business Rates and Council Tax included 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by 
regulation credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
and reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Each major preceptor’s share of the 
accrued Business Rates and Council Tax income is available from the information that is 
required to be produced in order to prepare the Collection Fund Statement. 
 
Business Rates and Council Tax income is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council, and the 
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 
 

Page 113



Revenue relating to Council Tax and Business Rates is measured at the full amount 
receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-exchange 
transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment dates. 
 
1.18 Overheads and Support Services  
 
The total absorption costing principal is used to apportion the full cost of support services 
and overheads to those services that benefit from that supply or service, with the exception 
of: 
 
• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-

functional, democratic organisation. 
• Non Distributed Costs – changes in past service costs and impairment losses 

chargeable on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
Corporate and Democratic Core is identified as a separate heading in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Non Distributed Costs form part of the Capital, Treasury 
and Technical Accounting Portfolio line with the Council’s local reporting format.  
 
1.19 Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
Value Added Tax payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not 
recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from 
income. 
 
1.20  Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
 
The Council has a material interest in an external entity which has the nature of a subsidiary 
and therefore group accounts have been prepared. In the Council’s single-entity accounts 
the Council’s interest in companies and other entities are recorded as financial assets at cost 
less any impairment. Any gains or losses are recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
1.21 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors 
 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, 
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices 
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, 
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. 
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had 
always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



1.22 Events after the Balance Sheet Date  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 
 

• Adjusting Events -Those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the 
end of the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events 
 

• Non-Adjusting Events - Those events that are indicative of conditions that arose after 
the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, 
but, where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 
notes of the nature of the events and either their estimated financial effect or a 
statement that such an estimate cannot be made reliably. 

 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
1.23 Fair Value Measurement  
 

The Council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 
 
The Council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its non financial assets and 
liabilities, for recognition or disclosure as appropriate, in line with the highest and best use 
definition within IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The highest and best use of the asset or 
liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant. Inputs to the 
valuation techniques in respect of the Council’s fair value measurement of its assets and 
liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the Council can access at the measurement date. 
 

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  
 

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2. 2017/18 Proposed Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
 The following disclosure sets out critical judgements applied to the accounting policies of the 

Council that have a significant impact on the presentation of the financial statements. Critical 
estimation uncertainties are described in Note 37. 
 
Upfront pension payment   
 
The Council is liable to make contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. 
For the 3 year period 2017/18 – 2019/20 the Council has agreed with the Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF) that the employer contributions payable to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) can be paid as a single up-front payment. 
Subsequently, on 13 April 2017 the Council paid £41.544m based on an estimated 
pensionable payroll of £72.000m per annum in order to make a budget saving. In line with 
the Council’s accounting policies the amount relating to 2017/18 has been accounted for in 
year, the amounts relating to 2018/19 and 2019/20 have been offset against the pension 
liability in the balance sheet. The pension reserve will be brought into line with the pension 
liability in 2019/20 as the up-front payment arrangements are accounted for. For further 
details see note 30 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes.  
 

Accounting for Schools – Balance Sheet Recognition of Schools 
 
The Council recognises the land and buildings used by schools in line with the provisions of 
the Code of Practice. It states that property used by local authority maintained schools 
should be recognised in accordance with the asset recognition tests relevant to the 
arrangements that prevail for the property. The Council recognises school land and buildings 
on its Balance Sheet where it directly owns the assets or where the school or school 
Governing Body own the assets or where rights to use the assets have been transferred 
from another entity.  
 
Where the land and building assets used by the school are owned by an entity other than the 
Council, school or school Governing Body then it is not included on the Council’s Balance 
Sheet. The exception is where the entity has transferred the rights of use of the asset to the 
Council, school or school Governing Body. 
 
The Council has completed a school by school assessment across the different types of 
schools it controls within the Borough. Judgements have been made to determine the 
arrangements in place and the accounting treatment of the land and building assets. The 
types of schools that have been assessed are shown below: 
 

Type of School 
No. of 

Primary 
Schools 

No. of 
Secondary 

Schools 

No. of 
Special 
Schools Total 

Community 34 1 1 36 

Voluntary controlled (VC) 5 - - 6 

Voluntary Aided (VA) 29 1 - 30 

Foundation/Foundation Trust 1 2 - 4 

Maintained Schools 69 4 1 74 

Academies 16 8 4 28 

Total 85 12 5 102 

 

Page 117



All Community schools are owned by the Council and the land and buildings used by the 
schools are included on the Council’s Balance Sheet. 
 
The Council has entered into Private Finance Initiative (PFI) agreements to build and 
operate three schools in the Borough. One is a VA school, one is a Foundation Trust schools 
and the remaining school is an Academy. Whilst the land which the buildings are sited on 
has been transferred to the respective Diocese, Trusts and Academy, the ownership of the 
buildings is determined by who holds the balance of control in line with accounting 
standards. The Council considers the buildings associated with these schools should be 
included on its Balance Sheet because: 

 
• The reversion clause within the PFI agreement results in the Council having a 

residual interest in the buildings at the end of the agreement  
• The services provided and the use of the building is controlled by the Council 

through the PFI agreement 
• The PFI agreement is between the PFI contractor and the Council 
 

Legal ownership of VC school land and buildings usually rests with a charity, normally a 
religious body. Five VC schools are owned by the Diocese who has granted a licence to the 
school to use the land and buildings. Under this licence arrangement, the rights of use of the 
land and buildings have not transferred to the school and thus are not included on the 
Council’s Balance Sheet. The remaining VC school land and building are owned by the 
Council and included on the Balance Sheet.  
 
For the remaining VA schools, legal ownership of the VA school land and buildings rests with 
the relevant Diocese. The Diocese has granted a licence to the school to use the land and 
buildings. Under this licence arrangement, the rights of use of the land and buildings have 
not transferred to the school and thus are not included on the Council’s Balance Sheet.  

 
Foundation and Foundation Trust schools were created to give greater freedom to the 
Governing Body responsible for school staff appointments and who also set the admission 
criteria. For a Foundation school, the school Governing Body has legal ownership of the land 
and buildings and thus are included on the Council’s Balance Sheet. For the remaining 
Foundation Trust school, a separate Trust owns the land and buildings so these assets are 
not included on the Council’s Balance Sheet.  
 
Academies are not considered to be maintained schools in the Council’s control. The land 
and building assets are not owned by the Council and are therefore not included on the 
Council’s Balance Sheet. 
 
Funding 
 
There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. 
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an 
indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close 
facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 
 
Group Boundaries 
 
The Council undertakes its activities through a variety of undertakings, either under ultimate 
control or in partnership with other organisations. Those considered to be material are 
included in the group accounts. Profit and loss, net worth, and the value of assets and 
liabilities are considered individually for each organisation against a materiality limit set by 
the Council. An entity could be material but still not consolidated (if all of its business is with 
the Council and eliminated on consolidation) – i.e. the consolidation would mean that the 

Page 118



group accounts are not materially different to the single entity accounts. The assessment of 
materiality also considers qualitative factors such as whether the Council depends 
significantly on these entities for the continued provision of its statutory services or where 
there is concern about the level to which the Council is exposed to commercial risk. For 
2017/18 the Council will continue to produce group accounts and will consolidate its 
subsidiary, Miocare Group Community Interest Company (Miocare). 
 
Miocare is the only body consolidated within the group accounts for 2017/18. Although the 
Council has other interests they are not considered material either in isolation or in 
aggregate.  
 
Investment Properties 

 
Investment properties have been assessed using the identifiable criteria under the 
international accounting standards and are being held for rental income or for capital 
appreciation. Properties have been assessed using this criteria, which is subject to 
interpretation to determine if there is an operational reason for holding the property such as 
regeneration. 
 
 

 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

Reason for Decision 
 
To advise Members of the proposed Internal Audit Charter for 2018-19. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The work of Internal Audit at Oldham Council has been governed by the UK Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) from 1st April 2013. The Standards comprise a 
revised definition of Internal Auditing, a Code of Ethics for Internal Auditors working in 
the Public Sector and the Standards themselves. The Standards are mandatory for all 
internal auditors working in the UK public sector. 
 
The 2017-18 Internal Audit Charter was approved by the Audit Committee on 2nd March 
2017 and Appendix 1 to this report includes the updated Charter for 2018-19. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
Members of the Audit Committee are requested to approve the Internal Audit Charter, 
effective from 1st April 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Report to Audit Committee 
 

Internal Audit Charter 2018/19 
 

Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Abdul Jabbar MBE – Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet Member  for Finance and HR 
 

Officer Contact:   Mark Stenson – Head of Corporate Governance 
 
Report Author: Mark Stenson – Head of Corporate Governance 
 
Ext. 4783 
 
1st March 2018 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10



 

 

Audit Committee                                                         
                       

1st March 2018 

Internal Audit Charter 2018-19 
 
1   Background 
  
1.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require every Local Authority to 

undertake an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
risk management, control and governance processes. This should be carried out with 
regard to public sector internal audit standards and guidance.  

  
1.2 Local Authority Internal Audit functions should comply with the 2013 Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (Revised 2017). These Standards (PSIAS) comprise a 
revised definition of Internal Auditing, a Code of Ethics for Internal Auditors working in 
the Public Sector and the Standards themselves. The Standards are mandatory for 
all internal auditors working in the UK public sector; the objectives of the PSIAS are 
to: 
 

 define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector; 

 set basic principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector; 

 establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value to the 
organisation, leading to improved organisational processes and operations; and 

 establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to drive 
improvement planning.  

  
1.3 The Standards require an independent external assessment of the Council’s Internal 

Audit service every five years. At its meeting on 8th September 2016, Members of the 
Audit Committee approved the selection of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) to conduct this external assessment and this was 
conducted in September 2017. The conclusions of the independent external 
assessment were reported to the Audit Committee meeting of 11th January 2018. 

  
1.4 PSIAS requires the “Internal Audit Charter” defines the mission, purpose, authority 

and responsibility of the Internal Audit function and its position within the 
organisation. The External Assessment report by CIPFA contained four 
recommendations, which have been fully agreed by the Head of Corporate 
Governance, and two of the changes relate to the Audit Charter. These are: 
 

 The “Mission of Internal Audit” to replace the role and purpose and this to be 
clarified in the Charter. 

 The Charter should incorporate a statement to the Audit Charter to confirm 
whether the Service has sufficient resources to deliver an effective Internal Audit 
service to the Council 

  
1.5 The Internal Audit Charter for 2017-18 was approved by the Audit Committee on 2nd 

March 2017. The 2017-18 Charter has been reviewed and updated, by the Head of 
Corporate Governance, who has also ensured that the above recommendations from 
the CIPFA assessment have been implemented. The proposed 2018-19 Internal 
Audit Charter is attached as Appendix 1. 

  
2.  Options/Alternatives 

 
2..1 N/A 
  

 
 

Page 122



 

 

3. Preferred Option 
 

3.1 N/A 
  
4. Consultation 

 
4.1 N/A 
  
5 
  

Financial Implications 

5.1 N/A 

6.
  

Legal Services Comments 

6.1  N/A 
  
7 
  

Cooperative Agenda 

7.1 N/A 
 

8 
  

Human Resources Comments 

8.1 N/A 
 

9.  Risk Assessments 
 

9.1  The risk assessment is based on the work competed 
 

10 
  

IT Implications 

10.1  N/A 
 

11  Property Implications 
 

11.1 N/A 
 

12  Procurement Implications 
 

12.1 N/A 
 

13  Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 

13.1  N/A 
 

14 Equality, Community Cohesion and Crime Implications 
 

14.1. None 
 

15 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 

15.1 No 
 

16 Key Decision 
 

16.1 N/A 
 

Page 123



 

 

17 Key Decision Reference 
 

17.1 N/A 
 

18  Background Papers 
 

18.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972. It does not include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential 
information as defined by the Act. 
 

  File Ref: Background papers are provided at Appendix 1 

 Officer Name: Jane Whyatt 

 Contact No: 4773 
 

19 Appendices 
 

19.1 Appendix 1: Internal Audit Charter 2018-19. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 124



 

 

 
Appendix 1          APPENDIX 1 

  
Oldham Council 
Internal Audit Function 
 
 
 
 
Internal Audit Charter 2018-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud 
Level 14 
Civic Centre 
West Street 
Oldham 
OL1 1 UH 
 

Page 125



 

 

Internal Audit Charter 2018-19 
 
 

 
Section 

 
Internal Audit Charter Contents 
 

 
Page 

1 Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 2 

   

2 Definition of Internal Audit 2 

   

3 Mission of Internal Audit 3 

   

4 Professionalism 3 

   

5 Authority 3 

   

6 Organisation 3 

   

7 Independence and Objectivity 3 

   

8 Responsibility 4 

   

9 Internal Audit Resources 4 

   

10 Internal Audit Plan 5 

   

11 Reporting and Monitoring 5 

   

12 Periodic Assessment 5 

   

14 Internal Audit Charter Review 6 

   

  

Page 126



 

 

Internal Audit Charter 2018-19 
1st April 2018 
 

1  Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require every Local Authority to 

undertake an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk 
management, control and governance processes. This should be carried out with regard to 
public sector internal audit standards and guidance. Local Authority Internal Audit functions 
should comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 

1.2 PSIAS (also referred to, in this document, as “the Standards”) define Internal Auditing as 
“….an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and 
improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by 
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.” 

 

1.3 The Standards state that the internal audit plan should include and/or be aligned to the 
strategic statement of how the service will be delivered in accordance with the Internal Audit 
Charter, which is illustrated by the following process flow diagram: 

 
1.4 The purpose of the Internal Audit Charter is to: 
 

•  define the mission, purpose, authority and responsibility of Internal Audit; 
•  establish the position of Internal Audit within the Council, its reporting lines and 

resources; 
•  authorise access to records, personnel and physical property relevance to the 

performance of the audit work; and 
•  define the scope of Internal Audit activities. 

 
2 Definition of Internal Audit 

 
2.1 Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to 

add value and improve an organization’s operations. It helps an organization accomplish its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 

 
2.2  The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit Charter defines the terms ‘board’ and ‘senior 

management’ in relation to the work of Internal Audit. For the purposes of internal audit work, 
at Oldham Council: 

 
• the ‘Board’ refers to the Council’s Audit Committee which has delegated responsibility for 

overseeing the work of Internal Audit; “Senior Management” is defined as the Chief 
Executive and members of the Council’s Executive Management Team; and 

•  the Head of Corporate Governance reports to the Director of Finance, to support their 
requirements under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 
 
 

Page 127



 

 

 
3.  Mission of Internal Audit 
 
3.1  The mission of Internal Audit is to provide an independent, objective assurance and 

consulting activity designed to add value and improve the Council’s operations. The primary 
objective of Internal Audit is to review, appraise and report upon the adequacy of internal 
controls across the entire council. 

 
4.  Professionalism 
 
4.1  The internal audit activity will govern itself by adherence to the PSIAS. This guidance 

constitutes principles of fundamental requirements for the professional practice of internal 
auditing and for the evaluating the effectiveness of the Internal Audit activity’s performance. 

 
4.2  The service, and individual staff, will be governed by the Code of Ethics of the relevant 

professional bodies of which they are a member, and all codes and policies operated by 
Oldham Council. 

 
5.  Authority 
 
5.1  The internal audit activity, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding 

records and information, is authorised full, free, and unrestricted access to any and all of 
Oldham Council’s records, physical properties, and personnel pertinent to carrying out any 
engagement. All employees are requested to assist the internal audit activity in fulfilling its 
roles and responsibilities. The internal audit activity will also have free and unrestricted 
access to senior officers, Members and the Audit Committee. 

 
5.2 Managers must also ensure that Internal Audit is provided with all the information and 

explanations that it requires in the course of its work. 
 
6.  Organisation 
 
6.1  The Internal Audit Section is part of the Corporate and Commercial Services Directorate, 

within the Finance Department. The Head of Corporate Governance reports directly to the 
Director of Finance, and also reports functionally to the Audit Committee. 

 
7.  Independence and Objectivity 
 
7.1 The internal audit activity will remain free from interference by any element in the 

organization, including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, or 
report content to permit maintenance of a necessary independent and objective mental 
attitude. 

 
7.2  Internal auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the 

activities audited. Accordingly, they will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, 
install systems, prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair an internal 
auditor’s judgment. 

 
7.3  Internal auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 

evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or process being examined. 
Internal auditors must make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and 
not be unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgments. 

 
7.4  The Head of Corporate Governance will confirm the organisational independence of the 

internal audit activity to the Audit Committee, at least annually. 

Page 128



 

 

 
 
8.  Responsibility 
 
8.1 The scope of internal auditing encompasses, but is not limited to, the examination and 

evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the organization’s governance, risk 
management, and internal process as well as the quality of performance in carrying out 
assigned responsibilities to achieve the organization’s stated goals and objectives. This 
includes: 

 

•  Evaluating the reliability and integrity of information and the means used to identify, 
measure, classify, and report such information. 

•  Evaluating the systems established to ensure compliance with those policies, plans, 
procedures, laws, and regulations which could have a significant impact on the 
organization. 

•  Evaluating the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence 
of such assets. 

•  Evaluating the effectiveness and efficiency with which resources are employed. 

•  Evaluating operations or programmes to ascertain whether results are consistent with 
established objectives and goals and whether the operations or programmes are being 
carried out as planned. 

•  Monitoring and evaluating governance processes. 

•  Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the organization’s risk management 
processes. 

•  Performing consulting and advisory services related to governance, risk management 
and control as appropriate for the organization. 

•  Reporting periodically on the purpose of internal audit activity, authority, responsibility, 
and performance relative to its plan. 

•  Reporting significant risk exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, governance 
issues, and other matters needed or requested by the Audit Committee. 

•  Evaluating specific operations at the request of the Audit Committee or management, as 
appropriate. 

•  Involvement in the investigation of any allegations of fraud in accordance with the 
Council’s Fraud Response Plan. 

 

9.  Internal Audit Resources 

9.1 The Head of Internal Audit which, in Oldham Council, is the Head of Corporate 
Governance,  is responsible for ensuring that Internal Audit resources are appropriately 
organised, trained and deployed to deliver an effective Internal Audit service to the Council. 
In particular, to ensure that Internal Audit resources: 

 are appropriately qualified and experienced, and that they possess the appropriate 
skills, knowledge and competences to ensure due professional care; 

 have sufficient knowledge of systems and ensure they have access to appropriate 
computer assisted audit techniques to perform their work, and data matching and 
analysis techniques; and 

 are recruited, supported and trained using the Council’s People Services standards and 
processes. 

Page 129



 

 

 

9.2 The Head of Internal Audit ensures that the Annual Audit Plan sets out the resources that 
are available, and how they will be deployed to ensure that the Plan is delivered. Specialist 
resources may be commissioned from other providers. 

9.3 The Head of Audit will report to the Council’s Audit Committee, if he believes there are 
insufficient resources available to deliver the Plan and if the level of agreed resources will 
impact adversely on the provision of the annual Internal Audit opinion. 

9.4 The Head of Audit concludes that there is sufficient Internal Audit resources to deliver an 
effective internal audit service to the Council in 2018/19. 

 

10.  Internal Audit Plan 
 
10.1  At least annually, the Head of Internal Audit will submit to senior management and the Audit 

Committee an internal audit plan for review and approval. The internal audit plan will consist 
of a work schedule as well as budget and resource requirements for the next fiscal/calendar 
year. The Head of Internal Audit will communicate the impact of resource limitations and 
significant interim changes to senior management and the Audit Committee. 

 
10.2  The Internal Audit Plan will be developed based on a prioritization of the audit universe 

using a risk-based methodology, including input of senior management and the Audit 
Committee Any significant deviation from the approved internal audit plan will be 
communicated to senior management and the Audit Committee through periodic activity 
reports. 

 
10.3 The Internal Audit Plan includes a strategic statement on Internal Audit, setting out how the 

overall service and how specific types of audits will be delivered. The Audit Charter sets out 
whether the Service has sufficient resources to deliver an effective Internal Audit service to 
the Council (this is set out in section 9.4 above). 

 
 

11.  Reporting and Monitoring 
 
11.1  A written report will be prepared and issued by the Head of Corporate Governance or 

designee following the conclusion of each internal audit engagement and will be distributed 
as appropriate. Internal audit results will also be communicated in summary to the Audit 
Committee. 

 
11.2  The internal audit report will include management’s response and corrective action taken or 

to be taken in regard to the specific findings and recommendations.  
 
11.3  The internal audit teamy will be responsible for appropriate follow-up on engagement 

findings and recommendations. All significant findings will remain in an open issues file until 
cleared. 

 
12.  Periodic Assessment 
 
12.1  Each year, the Head of Corporate Governance will report to senior management and the 

Audit Committee on the internal audit team’s mission, purpose, authority, and responsibility, 
as well as performance relative to its plan. Reporting will also include significant risk 
exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters 
needed or requested by senior management and the Audit Committee. 

 

Page 130



 

 

12.2  In addition, the Head of Corporate Governance will communicate to senior management 
and the Audit Committee on the Internal Audit activity’s quality assurance and improvement 
programme, including results of on-going internal assessments and external assessments 
conducted at least every five years. 

 
12.3 As reported earlier, in line with PSIAS, an external assessment of the Internal Audit service 

was conducted in 2017-18. Following a procurement exercise and approval by the Council’s 
Audit Committee, this assessment was carried out by the Chartered Institute of Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). 

 
12.4 The outcome of this external assessment was reported to the Audit Committee at its 

meeting of 11th January 2018. 
 
13.  Internal Audit Charter Review 
 
13.1  The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed by the Head of Corporate Governance annually, 

to ensure that it supports and links to the Council’s corporate priorities. The Charter should 
be reported to Audit Committee at least every two years. The Charter was last reported to 
the Audit Committee on 2nd March 2017.   

 
13.2 In line with the changes made to reflect the external assessment (sections 3,9 and 10), it 

was considered important that given the updating that has taken place that it be reported to 
the Audit Committee meeting of 1st March 2018. 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Report to Audit Committee 
 

 
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan 2018/19 
 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Abdul Jabbar MBE – Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for Finance and HR 
 
Officer Contact:  Anne Ryans - Director of Finance 
 
Report Author: Mark Stenson – Head of Corporate Governance 
 
Ext. 4783 
 
1st March 2018 
 
 
 

Reason for Decision 
 
To advise and consult with Members on the proposed Internal Audit and Counter Fraud 
Plan for the financial year 2018/19 and give Members of this Committee the opportunity 
to highlight any potential risks they feel would benefit from an Internal Audit and Counter 
Fraud review.  
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Annual Audit and Counter Fraud Plan is prepared on an annual basis and 
ultimately agreed with the Director of Finance as the Section 151 Officer to the Council. 
The Director of Finance needs to be assured the audit coverage is sufficient to 
discharge the S151 officer’s statutory role. Consultation with the Audit Committee at this 
stage gives Members the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed Annual 
Plan.   
 
Recommendations 
 
Members note and agree the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Planning process and 
the Audit and Counter Fraud Plan for 2018/19. 

  

Page 133

Agenda Item 11



 

Audit Committee 1st March 2018 
 
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan 2018/19 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 This is the report by the Head of Corporate Governance to this Committee to advise 

Members of the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud planning process for the financial year 
2018/19. It also gives Members of this Committee the opportunity to highlight any 
potential areas of work they feel would be appropriate for future Internal Audit and 
Counter Fraud coverage.  

  
2 Planning Process 
 
2.1 The first stage of the Annual Internal and Counter Fraud Plan is derived from the 

strategic three year audit plan prepared via the use of the Council’s agreed Audit Needs 
Assessment. This is then utilised to produce the initial draft of the Annual Plan.   

 
2.2   The next stage of developing the plan involves consultation with and review of the 

following: 
 

 Director of Finance and Senior Finance Staff 

 Key Directorate Staff 

 Issues reported in key documents, including: 
o Corporate Risk Register; 
o Annual Governance Statement. 

 The partnership and project governance undertaken with key Members of this 
Committee. 

 The Council’s Fraud and Loss Risk Assessment 

 Directorate Management Teams 

 External Audit 

 Audit Committee 

 The Head of Audit for the Greater Manchester Combined Authority   
 
2.3    Appendix 1 attached to this report sets out the key areas of proposed coverage it is 

proposed to review including developments on key projects and devolution. The Head of 
Corporate Governance will expand upon key issues at the meeting.   

 
3 Conclusions 
 
3.1 It is felt to be appropriate at this stage in the planning cycle to consult the Audit 

Committee in their governance role to gain their views on the proposed areas for 
coverage.        

 
4 Options/Alternatives 
 
4.1 N/A. 
 
5 Preferred Option 
 
5.1 The preferred option is that the Audit Committee notes the proposed areas for review 

and provides feedback on any areas they view as a priority for review. 
 
6 Consultation 
 
6.1 This report is consulting on the views of the Audit Committee in relation to the 2018/19 

Audit Coverage. 

Page 134



 

 
7 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 N/A. 
 
8 Legal Services Comments 
 
8.1 N/A. 
 
9 Cooperative Agenda 
 
9.1 N/A. 
 
10 Human Resources Comments 
 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 Risk Assessments 
 
11.1 N/A  
 
12 IT Implications 
 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Property Implications 
 
13.1 N/A 
 
14 Procurement Implications 
 
14.1 N/A 
 
15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
15.1 N/A 
 
16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
16.1 N/A 
 
17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
17.1  N/A 
 
18 Key Decision 

 
18.1 N/A 
 
19 Forward Plan Reference 
 
19.1 N/A 
 
20 Background Papers 
 
20.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 

with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not 

Page 135



 

include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined 
by the Act: 

 
 File Ref:  Background papers are included as Appendices  
  Officer Name: Mark Stenson 
 Contact No: Extension 4783 
 
21 Appendices  

 
21.1 Appendix 1: 2018/19 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan   

Page 136



Internal Audit & Counter Fraud Plan 

2018-2019

Mark Stenson, Head of Corporate GovernanceMark Stenson, Head of Corporate Governance

Audit Committee 1st March 2018

P
age 137



2018/19 Audit Planning Approach

• Understand corporate objectives and risks

• Define the audit universe

• Assess the inherent risk

• Assess the strength of the control environment

2

• Assess the strength of the control environment

• Calculate the audit requirement

• Determine the audit plan

• Consider additional audit requirements identified from 

the risk assessment process

P
age 138



Fundamental Financial Systems (1)
2018-2019 Year End Assurance

• Smart Project underpinned by a review of processes 

and controls, end to end systems will be documented

• Financial Systems Audits:

– Accounts Payable

3

– Account Receivables

– Bank Reconciliations

– Cash Income, supported by Control and Risk Self 

Assessment

– Council Tax Support

– Council Tax including Discounts and Exemptions

– Fixed Assets

– Housing Benefits and Risk Based Verification

P
age 139



Fundamental Financial Systems (2)
2018-2019 Year End Assurance

– Housing Rents

– NDR/Business Rates

– Payroll: 

• Post Agresso Milestone 6 upgrade

– Personal Budgets

4

– Personal Budgets

– Residential Homecare Payments

– Treasury Management

• Plus: Continuous review of key risks

P
age 140



Corporate Projects & Implementations: 

Assurance

• Smart Project:

– financial controls

• Agresso ERP System:

– Support Mode;

5

– Milestone 6 post Implementation:

• “Selima” HR/Payroll:

– HR 2.4 to 2.7 – support for upgrade  

• Mosaic:

– Post implementation reviews Adults Payments/Income migration

– Pre Implementation support Childrens Payments/Income migration

• Joint Systems with Combined Authority and Health:

– Local Care Organisation

P
age 141



Corporate Projects

ICT Assurance: IT Audit Plan

• IT Audit Plan in collaboration with External Supplier

• Server Refresh and other IT Projects. 

• Information Management:

– General Data Protection Rules (from 25th May 2018)

6

– General Data Protection Rules (from 25th May 2018)

P
age 142



Corporate Projects 

Devolution

• GMCA Integration of Health:

– Joint working emerging risks ,e .g. data security

• GMCA Arrangements for Monitoring Indemnities and 

Financial Undertakings

7

Financial Undertakings

• Assurance to the Combined Authority on current 

schemes and future developments

• Working Well In Greater Manchester Initiative 

• European Grants:

– Regional Assurance

P
age 143



Corporate and Commercial Services

Operational Audits

In addition to FFS and Corporate Audits, the following are 

Directorate based reviews:

• Elections Support and Assurance:

8

– Postal votes emerging risks

– Election Day support

• Governance Training

P
age 144



Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods

Regeneration and Capital

• Regeneration Projects

– Town Centre Master Plan

– Heritage Centre/Theatre

• School Capital Programme:

– Greenfield Primary School

9

– Greenfield Primary School

– Saddleworth Replacement School

– Royton and Crompton 

• Property Disposal

P
age 145



Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods

Education, Early Years and Community

• Schools’ Audit Plan:

– Audit follows up

– Control and Risk Self Assessment

• Education Governance Training:

10

• Education Governance Training:

– Governors, Head Teachers and Business Managers

• Academy and Free Schools’ Audit Plan

• New School Places

• Special Education Needs

• Early Years

P
age 146



Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods

Environment

• Unity Work Plan 

• Parks

• Devolved Budgets to Members 

• Highways Maintenance

11

• Highways Maintenance

• Operational Management “Mayrise” system:

– post implementation review

• FCHO Housing Allocation Process

P
age 147



Health and Wellbeing

Operational Audits

In addition to FFS and Mosaic assurance, the following are 

Directorate based reviews:

• Integration with Health

12

• Business Service Redesign:

– Changes to Financial Processes

• Supported Living Properties

• Mental Health Financial Processes

• Safeguarding People

• Brokerage Processes

P
age 148



Chief Executive

Operational Audits

• Environmental Management System:

– ISO 40001 support

– Supporting the development of local site review processes

• Carbon Reduction Commitment

13

• Carbon Reduction Commitment

P
age 149



Responsive, Investigations 

• Audit & Counter Fraud Investigations

• North West Chief Audit Executive Group: 

– Counter Fraud Sub Group Lead

• Management Planning and Quality Assurance:

– Quarterly Review, Reporting and Committee Reporting

14

• Contingency for Unplanned Work

• 2019-2020 Audit and Counter Fraud Plan Preparation

• Developing Training Proposition(s)

• Personal Budgets Audits (Adults/Children)

P
age 150



ANY QUESTIONS?

15

ANY QUESTIONS?

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 153

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 189

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19
	7 External Audit Plan Year Ending 31 March 2018
	8 Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2017-18
	9 2017/18 Proposed Accounting Policies and Critical Judgements
	Appendix 1 - Accounting Policies
	Appendix 2 - Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

	10 Internal Audit Charter 2018/19
	11 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan 2018/19
	201819 ACF Plan - slides - V3

	13 Internal Control Matters in the Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods Directorate
	14 Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 and New Issues on Governance

